


business qroups

International Corpor Won Anr oil

and xchinqe ommission on Form 10

holdmscn the 0mw ryswebcitc

and stiategi
Questions regarding stock cctificates replacement of lo

certrhcates address changes account consohdation md

Ia ex uiided or nsplaced divideno hould hr dddrestrd to

Compotershare Tiost Compani

RO Box 43036
its presener around the wodd ernployinq

Providence RI 02940 3036

Phons 888 294 81/

approxftnatoly %3OO people worldwide Internet wwwcomputersnarc

Matthews International orporition wdcomes and en oo mqs

questions and comments from its sharehoder potenual ow stors

hnancial professionals institutional investors mnd secunty mnalysts

Inteiested parties sho Id ron act SO yen cola micf Fir anc al

Officer Secretary and Ireasurer through tF Company wcbsitc or

by mail or telephone it thc ompairs orporatc Office



comFar ProfiI

atthewslnteinatoni oiporation headqnrtercd Pittsburgi Ut nsylvania icsiqni minJia turu ani

marketer ptincipal of mc moiial iation produc sand brand solutio is le uonali at on rduc.ts consist pi manly

broric and an to mei ionals and other merion lvat on products asia nd crcma or eq lip
nt tor cenetery ant

funo al home tusH Cs 3ra id so utior nciud graph imaging pr ducts and serv ce mark ng products nerc nr disi ig

solutiors The npanfl products and serv ces tiude cast bronze md grim icmoiia ar otl cr inca orial 7Th prod

caskets cast and etched architectural rrodt iernation equ pment and icmatior el ited It ct ma isoleum braid

mn gemeit pnnt 19 plates id cylindeis pre ess seivices and maging se vices for thc imary pacag nq and coirt gated

dutries marking mid cod ng cqt ipment md cc nsumables aid idt stnal automat produc for ident fy rg ac ii

and onvying ouscorsure aid idustnalproduc componentsaid packagngcontirc id mcr hi dsr

displmysvstcms aid markcting aid desq ervces

Dclakd ran novntn in liar slnItsvr dyrst ni rut asa cd Ps Scp

rfo air JStm.ncrt

limircual Jhligtt

Dollar amounts in -sousands xccpt share data 2011 2010 2009

Or rtmigRct

$898821 5821 81 i/S 98

Operati jpofit 118516 1658 10 li

P0 bcc omctaxc 112016 110413 9331

Nt trbutmbl

Ma uiev laicioldes 12372 b9 32

Cr nor St 311

uted iig pE tare 52.46 .131 $130

dnl 330 230 265

callus

ti $1091455 32 4953

kb ojc 1t 299170

Ic 468093 28 38tM



OU SIartodtr

IrE ph 111

11W or is ore .t wc cpa op

ItJhl 1110010 diet iriqvtF
cv ror qt 1W oy ag

1101 ct tc port cpe ptca

cport hat do to th ond is Matth

or frncan ena soid

qlowtr 2t hiqh qLt by Lt

Ccv 010 np it ncrt

Co dfl p01 ed cc nso ida ed ot $8

ru iforhi 20t1 iew recorifor Matttc ss

urnef ni nc tc si arc ho dc rs

201 the to IT cash AvId rlds aid

hasea rep ese iLl up appr xlrnatety

88 pci

The ora puny Lull shareho cC eqc Ity

rcreascd to rr cA 20 co cpared to

t480 fca 2010

otat onso dated assets qrew to VO $1 hi Ion toi

IC ti 11 IC COIIp Icy lot

The Cr mpany eported eon irqs pcr share of

52 16 the second qhe ycar he Corp II

61 year story

err ployces and uarehc dc rs ccc outd he

oud of uesc uc cc mplist meets ir thes dlfficu Omes

or oiaipa oves To ward we wi tn to

ire th it cart of our isi uesse ti ict irc to

icccssful dd ure chat copes and cap tat ie

01 ort ir ties

or at or

10 tdernori Ihzatlor pro thl her uocjraphll ot

Ac Jr te utates NO aLl Ii av qnif ca it impact

01 01 nc II sic Whi tr Ic ft love not ied

at over pu few years tt 11 oWl

axpected to he rrhatively cons ster to slightly higher in the

xt so rat years irojected to icre sc sien Ticaritty

191 to part cub
ty

the baby 11 PO itation

AddtiooaTv hr inc rate of ron abe is

vc eTA ct on the 110 ohm ted ar

oro /10 bci 1100 dernogrript ic ftuer cc

r1ue 91
lwtti oç porftir tic or hrorl/e II askel

is nesses ar rr ortal rorltlnue IV do 51 ib

50 Ill 55 iat JE Ill tc sIqIlIt Cdl VI IT

oh ov ou Ii iry Fur her Inc case

Ta od 0c
II 95 nd di CC Oil Cl

Ii CIC ri rk

ill 1cr 11

iiIfOd 11 01 II II

NO to non Id hi 11

rt ha cc pe icc cr1 It

rlpedtrol to ai Of ott It
p1

11 sc nI 20 Ir titivc 1019 iv 11

pec ia Is lu 119 tl recesiorl at hc nih

ton he 01 lost Ii ISIS 101

ib lue cnst iicrej ia pactcd El tW cs

for our caskc bus pitc tF It 10

0lf any cni noon 10 qenc nir COl 0lE irnin

pro vtti ovc tw TIsci yea As ic

imrrodty co ts sthI /0 Jil terr VI
II vey

roof idc nt tt full umeluta operat 01 1151

ho Ill SOS Jr hr OPT LIII tIcs 11 proof

Aol Remem ance Vnq rn has bcen icccss

Wc nltla ed is procjra 20 tO ld to ate iavc

enrolled ove 000 1101 1t hor cs err teric

merrocls The prugra In aha i/c toe pr rs

lnportanceo 01 11111 aton 11k qllevin procc

or An tIes tL crows ed ic Itirlg consu or aid

prov des tra 111119 ar ram cC 11 119 10 to hctp To

scrvlce prov del Ill et cOlisul ora needs

Market tere Cl em jandens cont ics

ncrrasc WIth our curler del 101 cd ict nffrr iq

partIcular fotowl 01 ecer or ncc ito ie

qlarlltc market ye arc wr prlsifionod op irticipat

th Ii urket wiLt divr if cc odr 101 loin

to pra sents nO otto qnooth OtlpOnt ity
Oh

uor elm ir tonq no ha Is

001 casket hr sn do CCI 119 lid

ysh rn to ru
pi

ovc Li tI uu Ne atIvI

wIt res hc ttc Ivcr our ri trill pr

tt rust ccti II ld asc ut tI/at CO of our

er dItrlbutlcn fIatncctu ttu 1111 Lu

provi Ic proqres lOVOI icr opp on Ix

fran

Mtors

Ftc affects of tIc eces or lot

dorncstx at ar xc as tespl Ic so kct

Cl id tlorl total rud opc up lit

Oral ci Co 111 in hi uesses Crc

Irs ivc ty cat 2011 VVc nc Cry ed Lu

Ifc once wc ml Il ilsc 112012 nkct

ufldiIOiC Ofla jOnCi Ii li hr



So ton bu nE cc 11 001 to nape cr cc vo ati ty

dci it 10 ccve ai idenced by hsc il 2011 th

iffl ra tic od favorable nd has ken npiovi rq

Wi coot ie see oupoitu it for furthv

ivestr ion tt ese busi iossos qe mi ally
thi 01

rqU otin rs to support tho growth trend and we re

xpanding per qraphica ly nto now narkets focal

201 air acquirod grapf cs operr hor Ian

lu key Additio mally WO have furti xpandc our

operahc ns Southeast As and ccently initiitcd

small presence in Soutl Amer

Cooidina ed nai ketinc efforts bet veen thi aphe

Imag ng aid Merchandisir So ons cqrnents were

inpoi ani cont bL tor to Ike sales owft of tEe Brand

Solutio rs group fisca 2011 he cross so ai of tf

prod etc aid cc vice crc tc sales ooportuni tics for both

of hose bus nessc with evora riovi rid oxistir bri id

owrer custorno In dd oi our ecen suc ss has

created in oppnriun ty for expansion
of the Mere hai dis np

Sc or segment ntc tf rirarket

ire ri iii 01 ing the row situation wit the

na iai mark Ac 1000 We base slablished

di European presence pm ci arly in th

Jo elo mci rn our Araphes Tdi ict
bus ness uropo

ias 0cc rc Ia ivc stable narkct for our orirpai

dorir
cj

tf oba eeoc iu ar II eoia watcl ful

ai tf cu iC nt tuat on cvols Id tiona ly
If

wc of these events orr he uc of the uro

oo havo opn fi ant mpact on tI do lar

ted ts forCe ope at ons

Lory kerr rnritre

so sti ive ir cot iur hA ti cc for rear

tern pc rtart that ia ntii 15 co tie

to qroa Matthew Vie iOn dc

tt opporttrn ties to icot our qoa and cci it nue

the MaChe ais ti aditio of qrowth We have stror

balance shcct and 00 coic bus newe provide stahl

base of operat np ca ow cvf idr II serve as the

platform for fc Ic ie iw tments

see opport ii for nyc si icr crc 01

his essw It ipporlu ut cc Ic

In cstrn ml op rat 10 prcrent an

fra ti uctc cc nprose Of Oir to ii pr mess Vows

arrd oduct ty 00 arruf ct irrg eI in xl

ad am nistrat func tio

love stn its produ desclopmerrt itroduce

ncv prodi cts ci mprovc the xistinp prodL ct

offei np to our ustocers

Ac quis rrs to expand tf peopraph read our

husirresses end our frroduc otferaigs oi bettn

ove ape he scale of our cpe tons

uc market far acquis ions remmir cO ti ely console

to each oui sogroents is importar to errphasize

that we do not npape in acquis tic ns foi the purposo

of ttair np desired iither iat cal prowtf oh ectivcs

lIre acqu otion cr ndidate mr ist ho lie right nvostrr ci

oppoiturrrty to if oui busi 1055 pu posos
arid list

proi de the uppiopriato rd iris ou tho in pany capi

Vh Ic several cf our ocent acquisit orrs verc iecossaiy

to piece vo the performance our oxistir businoss

011 rcq jisit on proprane rai been relative ucc

to owing those fc nd ir uc it pi inc es

Wc emairu corn tted to so nq irec
pri

mc ipal

const tuencic sfrai cI olde rs ostc and crc oyc

Ii commitnrciu hc cr the foc ndate if ttf

S1 em foi ovor Of mc md svc cc itin tc cc eve

that tt fourrdat on fo the To ore

arm cfrc tly ci cc urapeb by thro porforrnance of oin

nunanv tI esc mlloncni iu ii arrd cue rd

cccsslul sir 2t 12

LI Joseph Bartolocci

Pcesdoot acr C/i/cf xci ol vc fl/foci



2011 /ch evemet

In fr cal 2011 the ornpany hieved sales

$89 mOon the qhest the Company story

Coring fiscal 2011 the Company returne

ICon
ipproxi nately .89 pe she

to shareholders in the form of ash den Cs

share is port mes

bC old te 3smns grew vc hillier

or rst tune ri the ompa story

ri October 201 the Company dot 3red asf

dividend of $09 per sharr or the quarte cnd

Septein9er 30 2011 representing an incrc

bo lb Ma ft ews seventeenth div bend

Inc reese since em nitial public offtnnq in 199

the ompany returr on hare 3oldem quity

ncressed to fist el 2011 fiom

in fiscal 2010

itage of the Company sca 2011 on at ak





The Bronze seg ncnt manufactures and markets products Noitl Amurea

Europe nd Australia used cemetery funeral home and architectural

industnes he segment pn iopal products iclude cast bronze and granite

memorials and other rnemonal zation pioducts used mainly in cemeteries

Memorial products nclude

flush bronze and granite

memorials ipright granite

nomorials and monuments

cremation mernoral zatron

products flower vases rypt

plates and letters cameo

portraits cremation urns

che units ernetery features

Fd stdtues lommucity ind Idnwy auoieurris arid granite oenches

In addition the segment manufactures and markets cast bronze arid

aluminum arc hitectural products used to identify or commemorate

people aces events and accomplishments
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The Casket segment is leading manufacturer and dstnbutor

of caskets and otter funeral home oducts in Noh America

prodteing wide variety of wood metal and cremation

caskets It is also leadei in providing assoment planning

and meichandising and display products for funeral service

businesses fheso products assist funeral service professior als

in providing value and satisfaction to their client families
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The Cremation segment the leadng designer and

manufacturer of cremation

equipment and crernatio

related products in North

Amenca rematiori equipment

and other srema product

ai rvces are old prmarily

to funeral homes ceinetenes crematories

an ma disposers and eler narians within

North America Europe Australia and Asia
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The Graphics maging segment provides brand man gement

prmprcss servees pnnung plates and cylinders err hossi took

and creative devgr servkes to the primary packaqin

corrugated industries The segments principal products and

seive ir ode brand anagement ore press graph services

pr nting plates gi avu cylinders print process ass star cc print

pioductio uanogeiTent oigtal asse manugemert Lontent

management package design hesc products and services

are used by cor sumer productU companies and packaging

mariufac urers in develop arid print oackaging graph cs that

dent fy nd help sell the product the marketplace
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he Markng Products segment designs manufactures and distributes

wide range of mai king and coding products and elated consumables

as well as indutrial automation products

the ompanys products are used by

manufacturers and suppliers to identify

track and convey their oroducts and

packaging Marking technologies

include contact and ink jet printing

using wide range of specialty inks as

well as indenting and etching processes

Marking solutions can be standalone

operation or iriteqrated directly into the

manufactuiing piocess at high speeds with extreme accuracy
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ide Merchanthsing Soutions segment

is an industry nader in proving valuw

added rnerhandising and printing

solutions for brand owners and retailers

seqment signs manufactures

ai installs me handising and splay

syems nd provides total tarnke pi oject

rnanagerne nt sorvir es he segment also

provides creat ye meicha idising and

narketi solutions services
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ITEM BUSINESS continued

Years Ended September 30

2011 2010 2009

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Dollars in Thousands

Sales to unaffiliated customers

Memorialization

Bronze

Brand Solutions

Graphics Imaging

Marking Products

Merchandising Solutions

Total

Operating profit

Memorialization

Bronze

Casket

Cremation

Brand Solutions

Graphics Imaging

Marking Products

Merchandising Solutions

Total

In fiscal 2011 approximately 62% of the Companys sales were made from the United States and 33% 2% 2% and 1%

were made from Europe Australia Asia and Canada respectively For further information on Segments see Note

Segment Information in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data on page 62 of this report Bronze

segment products are sold throughout the world with the segments principal operations located in the United States Europe

Canada and Australia Casket segment products are primarily sold in North America Cremation segment products and

services are sold primarily in North America Europe Asia and Australia Products and services of the Graphics Imaging

segment are sold primarily in Europe the United States and Asia The Marking Products segment sells equipment and

consumables directly to industrial consumers and distributors in the United States and internationally through the Companys

subsidiaries in Canada Sweden and China and through other foreign distributors Matthews owns minority interest in

Marking Products distributors in Asia Australia and Europe Merchandising Solutions segment products and services are

sold principally in the United States

Casket

Cremation

$224773

238753

43816

25.0% $224247

26.6

4.9

210279

39356

27.3%

25.6

4.8

$21 5934

203247

30909

27.7%

26.0

4.0

507342 56.5 473882 57.7 450090 57.7

268975 29.9 239957 29.2 234966 30.1

61938 6.9 51069 6.2 42355 5.4

60566 6.7 56921 6.9 53497 6.8

391479 43.5 347947 42.3 330818 42.3

$898821 100.0% $821829 100.0% $780908 100.0%

52474 44.3% 56167 48.2% 57598 57.0%

26785 22.6 26242 22.5 17716 17.5

5733 4.8 4910 4.2 5036 5.0

84992 71.7 87319 74.9 80350 79.5

22427 18.9 21077 18.1 19217 19.0

7819 6.6 5817 5.0 1500 1.5

3278 2.8 2368 2.0 56

33524 28.3 29262 25.1 20661 20.5

$118516 100.0% $116581 100.0% $101011 100.0%
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ITEM BUSINESS continued

MEMORIALIZATION PRODUCTS AND MARKETS

Bronze

The Bronze segment manufactures and markets full line of memorialization products used primarily in cemeteries The

segments products which are sold principally in the United States Europe Canada and Australia include cast bronze

memorials granite memorials and other memorialization products The segment also manufactures and markets architectural

products that are produced from bronze aluminum and other metals which are used to identify or commemorate people

places events and accomplishments

Memorial products which comprise the majority of the Bronze segments sales include flush bronze and granite memorials

upright granite memorials and monuments cremation memorialization products granite benches flower vases crypt plates

and letters cremation urns niche units cemetery features and statues along with other related products and services Flush

memorials are bronze plaques or granite memorials which contain personal information about deceased individual such

as name birth date and death date photos and emblems Flush bronze and granite memorials are even or flush with

the ground and therefore are preferred by many cemeteries for easier mowing and general maintenance The segments

memorial products also include community and family mausoleums Matthews is leading builder of mausoleums within

North America In addition the segments other memorial products include bronze plaques letters emblems vases lights

and photoceramics that can be affixed to granite monuments mausoleums crypts and flush memorials Principal customers

for memorial products are cemeteries and memorial parks which in turn sell the Companys products to the consumer

Customers of the Bronze segment can also purchase memorials and vases on pre-need basis The pre-need concept

permits families to arrange for these purchases in advance of their actual need Upon request the Company will manufacture

the memorial to the customers specifications e.g name and birth date and place it in storage for future delivery All

memorials in storage have been paid in full with title conveyed to each pre-need purchaser

The Bronze segment manufactures full line of memorial products for cremation including urns in variety of sizes styles

and shapes as well as standard and custom designed granite cremation pedestals and benches The segment also

manufactures bronze and granite niche units which are comprised of numerous compartments used to display cremation

urns in mausoleums and churches In addition the Company also markets turnkey cremation gardens which include the

design and all related products for cremation memorial garden As part of the Memorialization group the segment works

with the Casket and Cremation segments to provide total solution to customers that own and operate businesses in both

the cemetery and funeral home markets

Architectural products include cast bronze and aluminum plaques etchings and letters that are used to recognize

commemorate and identify people places events and accomplishments The Companys plaques are frequently used to

identify the name of building or the names of companies or individuals located within building Such products are also

used to commemorate events or accomplishments such as military service or financial donations The principal markets for

the segments architectural products are corporations fraternal organizations contractors churches hospitals schools and

government agencies These products are sold to and distributed through network of independent dealers including sign

suppliers awards and recognition companies and trophy dealers

Raw materials used by the Bronze segment consist principally of bronze and aluminum ingot granite sheet metal coating

materials photopolymers and construction materials and are generally available in adequate supply Ingot is obtained from

various North American European and Australian smelters

Competition from other cemetery product manufacturers is on the basis of reputation product quality delivery price and

design availability The Company believes that its superior quality broad product lines innovative designs delivery capability

customer responsiveness experienced personnel and consumer-oriented merchandising systems are competitive advantages

in its markets Competition in the mausoleum construction industry includes various construction companies throughout

North America and is on the basis of design quality and price Competitors in the architectural market are numerous and

include companies that manufacture cast and painted signs plastic materials sand-blasted wood and other fabricated products
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ITEM BUSINESS continued

Casket

The Casket segment is leading manufacturer and distributor of caskets and other funeral home products in North America

The segment produces and markets metal and wood caskets The Casket segment also manufactures and distributes

cremation caskets Caskets can be customized with many different options such as coloç interior design handles and trim

in order to accommodate specific religious ethnic or other personal preferences The segment also markets other funeral

home products such as urns jewelry stationery and other funeral home products and supplies The segment offers individually

personalized caskets and urns through the Company-owned distribution network

Metal caskets are made from various gauges of cold-rolled steel stainless steel copper and bronze Metal caskets are

generally categorized by whether the casket is non-gasketed or gasketed and by material i.e bronze coppe or steel and

in the case of steel by the gauge thickness of the metal Cremation caskets are made primarily from wood or cardboard

covered with cloth or veneer These caskets appeal primarily to cremation consumers the environmentally concerned and

value buyers

The segments wood caskets are manufactured from nine different species of wood as well as from veneer The speces of

wood used are poplar pine ash oak pecan maple cherry walnut and mahogany The Casket segment is leading

manufacturer of all-wood constructed caskets which are manufactured using pegged and dowelled construction and

include no metal parts All-wood constructed caskets are preferred by certain religious groups

The segment also produces casket components Casket components include stamped metal parts metal locking mechanisms

for gasketed metal caskets adjustable beds interior panels and plastic ornamental hardware for the exterior of the casket

Metal casket parts are produced by stamping cold-rolled steel stainless steel copper and bronze sheets into casket body

parts Locking mechanisms and adjustable beds are produced by stamping and assembling variety of steel parts Certain

ornamental hardware styles are produced from injection molded plastic The segment purchases from sawmills and lumber

distributors various species of uncured wood which it dries and cures The cured wood is processed into casket components

The segment provides product and service assortment planning and merchandising and display products to funeral service

businesses These products assist funeral service professionals in providing information value and satisfaction to their client

families

The primary materials required for casket manufacturing are cold-rolled steel and lumber The segment also purchases coppeç

bronze stainless steel corrugated materials cloth ornamental hardware and coating materials Purchase orders or supply

agreements are typically negotiated with large integrated steel producers that have demonstrated timely delivery high quality

material and competitive prices Lumber is purchased from number of sawmills and lumber distributors The Company

purchases most of its lumber from sawmills within 50 miles of its wood casket manufacturing facility in York Pennsylvania

The segment markets its casket products in the United States through combination of Company-owned and independent

casket distribution facilities The Company operates approximately 60 distribution centers in the United States Over 70%

of the segments casket products are currently sold through Company-owned distribution centers As part of the

Memorialization group the segment works with the Bronze and Cremation segments to provide total solution to customers

that own and operate businesses in both the cemetery and funeral home markets

The casket business is highly competitive The segment competes with other manufacturers on the basis of product quality

price service design availability and breadth of product line The segment provides line of casket products that it believes

is as comprehensive as any of its major competitors There are large number of casket industry participants operating in

North America and the industry has recently seen few new foreign casket manufacturers primarily from China enter the

North American market The Casket segment and its two largest competitors account for substantial portion of the finished

caskets produced and sold in North America
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ITEM BUSINESS continued

Cremation

The Cremation segment provides six distinct complementary groups of products and services

Cremation Equipment

Service and Supplies

Environmental Systems

Crematory Management/Operations

Cremation Columbarium and Niche Units

Cremation Urns and Memorial Products

Servicing both the human and pet markets the segments primary market areas are North America and Europe The segment

also sells into Latin America and the Caribbean Australia and Asia

Cremation equipment includes both traditional flame-based and water-based blo-cremation systems for cremation of humans

and pets as well as equipment for processing the cremated remains and other related equipment such as handling equipment

ventilated work stations tables cooler racks vacuums The principal markets for these products are funeral homes

cemeteries crematories pet crematories animal disposers and veterinarians These products are marketed mostly direct by

segment personnel

Crematory service and supplies consist of preventative maintenance and at need service work performed on various makes

and models of cremation equipment This work can be as simple as replacing defective bulbs or as complex as complete

reconstruction and upgrading or retro-fitting on site The principal markets for these services are the owners and operators

of cremation equipment Cremation supplies are consumable items associated with the cremation operations Supplies could

include operator safety equipment identification discs combustible roller tubes as well as products such as plastic temporary

cremation containers pans and brushes used in the process

Environmental systems include emissions filtration units waste heat recovery equipment waste gas treatment products as

well as waste reduction equipment and bio-mass incinerators The principal markets are the cremation industry waste to

energy and other industries which utilize incinerators for waste reduction and energy production

Crematory management/operations represents the actual operation and management of client-owned crematories

Cremation columbarium and niche units are produced by the segment for the placement/display of urns and other containers

of cremated remains The principal markets targeted by the segment include church and university markets affinity groups

and other emerging memorialization markets

Cremation urns and memorialization products include urns which support various forms of memorialization burial niche

scattering and home decor Merchandise includes any other family-related products such as cremation jewelry mementos

remembrance products and other assorted at-need merchandise

Raw materials used by the Cremation segment consist principally of structural steel sheet metal electrical components

combustion devices and refractory materials These are generally available in adequate supply from numerous suppliers

The Company competes with several manufacturers in the cremation and accessory equipment market principally on the

basis of product design quality and price The Cremation segment and its three largest global competitors account for

substantial portion of the U.S and European cremation equipment market



ITEM BUSINESS continued

BRAND SOLUTIONS PRODUCTS AND MARKETS

Graphics Imaging

The Graphics Imaging segment provides brand management pre-press services printing plates and cylinders embossing

tools and creative design services principally to the primary packaging and corrugated industries The primary packaging

industry consists of manufacturers of printed packaging materials such as boxes flexible packaging folding cartons and

bags commonly seen at retailers of consumer goods The corrugated packaging industry consists of manufacturers of printed

corrugated containers Other major industries served include the wallpaper flooring automotive and textile industries

The principal products and services of this segment include brand management pre-press graphics services printing plates

gravure cylinders steel bases embossing tools special purpose machinery engineering assistance print process assistance

print production management digital asset management content management and package design These products and

services are used by brand owners and packaging manufacturers to develop and print packaging graphics that identify and

help sell the product in the marketplace Other packaging graphics can include nutritional information directions for product

use consumer warning statements and UPC codes The primary packaging manufacturer produces printed packaging from

paper film foil and other composite materials used to display protect and market the product The corrugated packaging

manufacturer produces printed containers from corrugated sheets Using the Companys products these sheets are printed

and die cut to make finished containers

The segment offers wide array of value-added services and products These include print process and print production

management services print engineering consultation pre-press preparation which includes computer-generated art film

and proofs plate mounting accessories and various press aids and rotary and flat cutting dies used to cut out intricately

designed containers and point-of-purchase displays The segment also provides creative digital graphics services to brand

owners and packaging markets

The Company works closely with manufacturers to provide the proper printing forms and tooling used to print the packaging

to the users specifications The segments printing plate products are made principally from photopolymer resin and sheet

materials Upon customer request plates can be pre-mounted press-ready in variety of configurations that maximize print

quality and minimize press set-up time Gravure cylinders manufactured from steel copper and chrome can be custom

engineered for multiple print processes

The Graphics Imaging segment customer base consists primarily of brand owners and packaging industry converters Brand

owners are generally large well-known consumer products companies and retailers with national or global presence

These types of companies tend to purchase their graphics needs directly and supply the printing forms or the electronic files

to make the printing plates and gravure cylinders to the packaging printer for their products The Graphics Imaging segment

serves customers primarily in Europe the United States and Asia

Major raw materials for this segments products include photopolymers steel copper film and graphic art supplies All such

materials are presently available in adequate supply from various industry sources

The Graphics Imaging segment is one of several manufacturers of printing plates and cylinders and providers of pre-press

services with an international presence The segment competes in fragmented industry consisting of few multi-plant

regional printing form suppliers and large number of local single-facility companies located across Europe and the United

States The combination of the Companys Graphics Imaging business in Europe the United States and Asia is an important

part of Matthews strategy to become worldwide leader in the graphics industry and service multinational customers on

global basis Competition is on the basis of product quality timeliness of delivery and price The Company differentiates

itself from the competition by consistently meeting these customer demands its ability to service customers both nationally

and globally and its ability to provide value-added services
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ITEM BUSINESS continued

Marking Products

The Marking Products segment designs manufactures and distributes wide range of equipment and related consumables

used by manufacturers and suppliers to identify track and brand their products Marking products can range from

mechanical marking solution to microprocessor-based ink-jet printing systems that can integrate into the customers

manufacturing inventory tracking and material handling control systems The Company manufactures and markets products

and systems that employ different marking technologies including contact printing indenting etching lase and ink-jet

printing Customers will often use combination of these methods in order to achieve an appropriate mark These methods

apply product information required for identification and traceability as well as to facilitate inventory and quality control

regulatory compliance and brand name communication

Other solutions provided by the Company complement the tracking and distribution of customers products and include

order fulfillment systems motor-driven rollers and controls for material handling systems and other innovative custom

solutions that address specific customer requirements Some of the industries for which custom products are produced

include oil exploration material handling and security scanning Material handling industry customers include some of the

largest automated assembly distribution and mail sorting companies in the United States

significant portion of the revenue of the Marking Products segment is attributable to the sale of consumables and

replacement parts in connection with the marking coding and tracking hardware sold by the Company The Company

develops inks rubber and steel consumables in harmony with the marking equipment in which they are used which is critical

to assure ongoing equipment reliability and mark quality Many marking equipment customers also use the Companys inks

solvents and cleaners

The principal customers for the Companys marking products are manufacturers of durable goods and building products

consumer goods manufacturers including food and beverage processors and producers of pharmaceuticals The Company

also serves wide variety of industrial markets including metal fabricators manufacturers of woven and non-woven fabrics

plastic rubber and automotive products

portion of the segments sales are outside the United States and are distributed through the Companys subsidiaries in

Canada Sweden Germany and China in addition to other international distributors Matthews owns minority interest in

distributors in Asia Australia and Europe

The marking products industry is diverse with companies either offering limited product lines for well-defined specialty

markets or similar to the Company offering broad product line and competing in various product markets and countries

In the United States the Company has manufactured and sold marking products and related consumable items since 1850

Major raw materials for this segments products include precision components electronics printing components tool steels

rubber and chemicals all of which are presently available in adequate supply from various sources

Competition for marking products is based on product performance integration into the manufacturing process service

and price The Company normally competes with specialty companies in specific brand marking solutions and traceability

applications The Company believes that in general it offers one of the broadest lines of products to address wide variety

of marking coding and tracking applications



ITEM BUSINESS continued

Merchandising Solutions

The Merchandising Solutions segment provides merchandising and printing solutions for brand owners and retailers The

segment designs manufactures and installs merchandising and display systems and provides total turnkey project

management services The segment also provides creative merchandising and marketing solutions services

The majority of the segments sales are derived from the design engineering manufacturing and installation of merchandising

and display systems These systems include permanent and temporary displays custom store fixtures brand concept shops

interactive kiosks custom packaging and screen and digitally printed promotional signage Design and engineering services

include concept and model development graphics design and prototyping Merchandising and display systems are

manufactured to specifications developed by the segment in conjunction with the customer These products are marketed

and sold primarily in the United States

The segment operates in fragmented industry consisting primarily of number of small locally operated companies

Industry competition is intense and the segment competes on the basis of reliability creativity and providing
broad array

of merchandising products and services The segment is unique in its ability to provide in-depth marketing and merchandising

services as well as design engineering and manufacturing capabilities These capabilities allow the segment to deliver

complete turnkey merchandising solutions quickly and cost effectively

Major raw materials for the segments products include wood particleboard corrugated materials structural steel plastic

laminates inks film and graphic art supplies All of these raw materials are presently available in adequate supply from

various sources

PATENTS TRADEMARKS AND LICENSES

The Company holds number of domestic and foreign patents and trademarks However the Company believes the loss

of any or significant number of patents or trademarks would not have material impact on consolidated operations

or revenues

BACKLOG

Because the nature of the Companys Bronze Graphics Imaging and Merchandising Solutions businesses are primarily custom

products made to order with short lead times backlogs are not generally material except for mausoleums in the Bronze

segment Backlogs vary in range of approximately one year of sales for mausoleums Backlogs for the Casket segment

and the cremation casket businesses are not material Cremation equipment sales backlogs vary in range of eight to ten

months of sales Backlogs generally vary in range of up to four weeks of sales in the Marking Products segment The

Companys backlog is expected to be substantially filled in fiscal 2012

REGULATORY MATFERS

The Companys operations are subject to various federal state and local laws and regulations relating to the protection of the

environment These laws and regulations impose limitations on the discharge of materials into the environment and require

the Company to obtain and operate in compliance with conditions of permits and other government authorizations As such

the Company has developed environmental health and safety policies and procedures that include the proper handling

storage and disposal of hazardous materials

The Company is party to various environmental matters These include obligations to investigate and mitigate the effects on

the environment of the disposal of certain materials at various operating and non-operating sites The Company is currently

performing environmental assessments and remediation at these sites as appropriate In addition prior to its acquisition

The York Group Inc was identified along with others by the Environmental Protection Agency as potentially responsible

party for remediation of landfill site in York Pennsylvania At this time the Company has not been joined in any lawsuit

or administrative order related to the site or its clean-up
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ITEM BUSINESS continued

At September 30 2011 an accrual of approximately $6.2 million had been recorded for environmental remediation of
which $788000 was classified in other current liabilities representing managements best estimate of the probable and

reasonably estimable costs of the Companys known remediation obligations The accrual does not consider the effects of

inflation and anticipated expenditures are not discounted to their present value While final resolution of these contingencies

could result in costs different than current accruals management believes the ultimate outcome will not have significant

effect on the Companys consolidated results of operations or financial position

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

There are inherent risks and uncertainties associated with the Companys businesses that could adversely affect its operating

performance and financial condition Set forth below are descriptions of those risks and uncertainties that the Company
currently believes to be material Additional risks not currently known or deemed immaterial may also result in adverse

effects on the Company

Changes in Economic Conditions Generally changes in domestic and international economic conditions affect the

industries in which the Company and its customers and suppliers operate These changes include changes in the rate of

consumption or use of the Companys products due to economic downturns volatility in
currency exchange rates and

changes in raw material prices resulting from supply and/or demand conditions

Uncertainty about current global economic conditions poses risk as consumers and businesses may continue to postpone

or cancel spending Other factors that could influence customer spending include energy costs conditions in the credit

markets consumer confidence and other factors affecting consumer spending behavior These and other economic factors

could have an effect on demand for the Companys products and services and negatively impact the Companys financial

condition and results of operations

Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates Manufacturing and sales of significant portion of the Companys
products are outside the United States and accordingly the Company holds assets incurs liabilities earns revenue and pays

expenses in variety of currencies The Companys consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S dollars and

therefore the Company must translate the reported values of its foreign assets liabilities revenue and expenses into U.S

dollars Increases or decreases in the value of the U.S dollar compared to foreign currencies may negatively affect the value

of these items in the Companys consolidated financial statements even though their value has not changed in local currency

Increased Prices for Raw Materials The Companys profitability is affected by the prices of the raw materials used in

the manufacture of its products These prices may fluctuate based on number of factors including changes in supply and

demand domestic and global economic conditions and volatility in commodity markets currency exchange rates labor

costs and fuel-related costs If suppliers increase the price of critical raw materials alternative sources of supply or an

alternative material may not exist

The Company has standard selling price structures i.e list prices in several of its segments which are reviewed for adjustment

generally on an annual basis In addition the Company has established pricing terms with several of its customers through

contracts or similar arrangements Based on competitive market conditions and to the extent that the Company has

established pricing terms with customers the Companys ability to immediately increase the price of its products to offset the

increased costs may be limited Significant raw material price increases that cannot be mitigated by selling price increases

or productivity improvements will negatively affect the Companys results of operations
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS continued

Changes in Mortality and Cremation Rates Generally life expectancy in the United States and other countries in which

the Companys Memorialization businesses operate has increased steadily for several decades and is expected to continue to

do so in the future The increase in life expectancy is also expected to impact the number of deaths in the future Additionally

cremations have steadily grown as percentage of total deaths in the United States since the 960s and are expected to

continue to increase in the future The Company expects that these trends will continue in the future and the result may

affect the volume of bronze memorialization products and burial caskets sold in the United States Howeve sales of the

Companys Cremation segment may benefit from the growth in cremations

Changes in Product Demand or Pricing The Companys businesses have and will continue to operate in competitive

markets Changes in product demand or pricing are affected by domestic and foreign competition and an increase in

consolidated purchasing by large customers operating in both domestic and global markets The Memorialization businesses

generally operate in markets with ample supply capacity and demand which is correlated to death rates The Brand Solutions

businesses serve global customers that are requiring their suppliers to be global in scope and price competitive Additionally

in recent years
the Company has witnessed an increase in products manufactured offshore primarily in China and imported

into the Companys U.S markets It is expected that these trends will continue and may affect the Companys future results

of operations

Risks in Connection with Acquisitions The Company has grown in part through acquisitions and continues to evaluate

acquisition opportunities that have the potential to support and strengthen its businesses There is no assurance however

that future acquisition opportunities will arise or that if they do that they will be consummated In addition acquisitions

involve inherent risks that the businesses acquired will not perform in accordance with expectations or that synergies expected

from the integration of the acquisitions will not be achieved as rapidly as expected if at all Failure to effectively integrate

acquired businesses could prevent the realization of expected rates of return on the acquisition investment and could have

negative effect on the Companys results of operations and financial condition

Technological Factors Beyond the Companys Control The Company operates in certain markets in which technological

product development contributes to its ability to compete effectively There can be no assurance that the Company will be

able to develop new products that new products can be manufactured and marketed profitably or that new products will

successfully meet the expectations of customers

Changes in the Distribution of the Companys Products or the Loss of Large Customer Although the Company

does not have any customer that is considered individually significant to consolidated sales it does have contracts with

several large customers in both the Memorialization and Brand Solutions businesses While these contracts provide

important access to large purchasers of the Companys products they can obligate the Company to sell products at

contracted prices for extended periods of time Additionally any significant divestiture of business properties or operations

by current customers could result in loss of business if the Company is not able to maintain the business with the

subsequent owners of the properties

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not Applicable

11



ITEM PROPERTIES

Principal properties of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries as of October 31 2011 were as follows properties

are owned by the Company except as noted

Location Description of Property

Bronze

Pittsburgh PA Manufacturing Division Offices

Kingwood WV Manufacturing

Melbourne Australia Manufacturing

Monterrey Mexico Manufacturing

Parma Italy Manufacturing Warehouse

Searcy AR Manufacturing

Whittie CA Manufacturing

Casket2

Monterrey Mexico Manufacturing

Richmond IN Manufacturing

Richmond IN Manufacturing Metal Stamping

Richmond IN Injection Molding

York PA Manufacturing

Cremation

Apopka FL Manufacturing Division Offices

Richmond IN Manufacturing

Manchesteç England Manufacturing

Udine Italy Manufacturing

Graphics Imaging

Pittsburgh PA Manufacturing Division Offices

Jülich Germany Manufacturing Division Offices

Atlanta GA Manufacturing

Woburn MA Manufacturing

Bristol England Manufacturing

Goslar Germany Manufacturing

Leeds England Manufacturing

Monchengladbach Germany Manufacturing

Munich Germany Manufacturing

Nuremberg Germany Manufacturing

Oakland CA Manufacturing

Poznan Poland Manufacturing

St Louis MO Manufacturing

Shenzhen China Manufacturing

Vienna Austria Manufacturing

Vreden Germany Manufacturing

Wan Chai Hong Kong Manufacturing

lzmir Turkey Manufacturing
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ITEM PROPERTIES continued

Location Description of Property

Marking Products

Pittsburgh PA Manufacturing Division Offices

Gothenburg Sweden Manufacturing Distribution

Tualatin OR Manufacturing

Beijing China Manufacturing

Ixonia WI Manufacturing

Germantown WI Manufacturing

Merchandising Solutions

East Butler PA Manufacturing Division Offices

Portland OR Sales Office

Corporate Office

Pittsburgh PA General Offices

11 These properties are leased by the Company under operating lease arrangements Rent expense ncurred by the Company for all leased facihties was approximately

$1 5.2 million in fiscal 2011

12
In addition to the properties listed the Casket division leases warehouse facilities totaling approximately 1.0 million square feet in 27 states under operating leases

All of the owned properties are unencumbered The Company believes its facilities are generally well suited for their respective

uses and are of adequate size and design to provide the operating efficiencies necessary for the Company to be competitive

The Companys facilities provide adequate space
for meeting its near-term production requirements and have availability for

additional capacity The Company intends to continue to expand and modernize its facilities as necessary to meet the

demand for its products

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Matthews is subject to various legal proceedings and claims arising in the ordinary course of business Management does

not expect that the results of any of these legal proceedings will have material adverse effect on Matthews financial

condition results of operations or cash flows

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to vote of the Companys security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011
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OFFICERS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT OF THE REGISTRANT

The following information is furnished with respect to officers and executive management as of October 31 2011

Name Age Positions with Registrant

Joseph Bartolacci 51 President and Chief Executive Officer

David Beck 59 Vice President and Controller

Jennifer Ciccone 44 Vice President Human Resources

Brian Dunn 54 Group President Brand Solutions

Steven Gackenbach 48 Group President Memorialization

Steven Nicola 51 Chief Financial Officer Secretary and Treasurer

Paul Rahill 54 President Cremation Division

Brian Walters 42 Vice President and General Counsel

Joseph Bartolacci was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer effective October 2006

David Beck was appointed Vice President and Controller effective February 18 2010 Prior thereto he had been Controller

since September 2003

Jennifer Ciccone was appointed Vice President Human Resources effective February 19 2009 Prior thereto Ms Ciccone

had been Directo Corporate Human Resources since 2006

Brian Dunn was appointed Group President Brand Solutions effective February 18 2010 Prior thereto he was appointed

Group President Graphics and Marking Products effective September 2007 and had been President Marking Products

Division prior thereto

Steven Gackenbach was appointed Group President Memorialization effective October 31 2011 Prior thereto he had

been Chief Commercial Officer Memorialization since January 2011 when he joined the Company Prior to joining the

Company Mr Gackenbach served as the Senior Director of Strategy for Kraft Foods Cheese and Dairy Division from 2002

to 2010

Steven Nicola was appointed Chief Financial Officer Secretary and Treasurer effective December 2003

Paul Rahill was appointed President Cremation Division in October 2002

Brian Walters was appointed Vice President and General Counsel effective February 19 2009 Mr Walters joined the

Company as Legal Counsel in 2005
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY

AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Market Information

The authorized common stock of the Company consists of 70000000 shares of Class Common Stock $1 par
value The

Companys Class Common Stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market System under the symbol MAIW

The following table sets forth the high low and closing prices as reported by NASDAQ for the periods indicated

High Low Close

Fiscal 2011

Quarter ended September 30 2011 $41 .08 $28.57 $30.73

June3O2011 40.49 35.60 40.17

March 31 2011 38.65 33.56 38.55

December 31 2010 36.00 31.62 34.98

Fiscal 2010

Quarter ended September 30 2010 $36.92 $28.29 $35.36

June 30 2010 36.58 28.91 29.28

March 31 2010 37.00 31.33 35.50

December31 2009 39.81 33.23 35.43

The Company has stock repurchase program Under the current authorization the Companys Board of Directors has

authorized the repurchase of total of 2500000 shares of Matthews common stock under the program of which

2169470 shares had been repurchased as of September 30 2011 In November 2011 the Company Board of Directors

approved the continuation of its stock repurchase program and increased the total authorization for stock repurchases by an

additional 2500000 shares.The buy-back program is designed to increase shareholder value enlarge the Companys holdings

of its common stock and add to earnings per share Repurchased shares may be retained in treasury utilized for acquisitions

or reissued to employees or other purchasers subject to the restrictions of the Companys Restated Articles of Incorporation

All purchases of the Companys common stock during fiscal 2011 were part of this repurchase program
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ITEMS MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS continued

The following table shows the monthly fiscal 2011 stock repurchase activity

Maximum
Total number of shares number of shares

purchased as part that may yet be

Total number of Average price of publicly purchased under

Period shares purchased paid per share announced plan the plan

October2010 760 $33.44 760 1649145
November 2010 11735 33.31 11735 1637410
December2010 69048 33.69 69048 1568362

January2011 20347 34.14 20347 1548015

February2oll 35000 36.16 35000 1513015
March 2011 75000 35.96 75000 143801

April 2011 3085 39.44 3085 1434930

May2011 126113 38.21 126113 1308817
June2011 53120 37.71 53120 1255697

July2011 142184 36.92 142184 1113513

August 2011 529271 32.32 529271 584242

September2011 253712 31.01 253712 330530

Total 1319375 $33.78 1319375

Holders

Based on records available to the Company the number of registered holders of the Companys common stock was 504 at

October 31 2011

Dividends

quarterly dividend of $09 per share was paid for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011 to shareholders of record on October 31

2011 The Company paid quarterly dividends of $08 per share for the first three quarters of fiscal 2011 and the fourth quarter

of fiscal 2010 The Company paid quarterly dividends of $07 per share for the first three quarters of fiscal 2010 and the

fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 The Company paid quarterly dividends of $065 per share for the first three quarters of fiscal

2009 and the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008

Cash dividends have been paid on common shares in
every year for at least the past forty years It is the present intention

of the Company to continue to pay quarterly cash dividends on its common stock Howeve there is no assurance that

dividends will be declared and paid as the declaration and payment of dividends is at the discretion of the Board of Directors

of the Company and is dependent upon the Companys financial condition results of operations cash requirements future

prospects and other factors deemed relevant by the Board
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ITEMS MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS continued

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE RETURN

AMONG MA1TH EWS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION

SP 500 INDEX SP MIDCAP 400 INDEX AND SP SMALLCAP 600 INDEX

_-4-Matthews
--SP5OO -SPMidCap400 --SPSmaIICap6OO

Total return assumes dividend reinvestment

Fiscal year
ended September30

Note Performance graph assumes $100 invested on October 2006 in Matthews International Corporation Common

Stock Standard Poors SP 500 Index SP MidCap 400 Index and SP SmaliCap 600 Index The results are not

necessarily indicative of future performance
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ITEM SELECTED FINMCIAL DATA

Years Ended September 30

20111 20102 2009 2008 2007

Amounts in thousands except per share data

Not Covered by Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Net sales $898821 $821829 $780908 $818623 $749352

Operating profit 118516 116581 101011 132952 111824

Interest expense 8241 7419 12053 10405 8119

Net income attributable to

Matthews shareholders 72372 69057 57732 79484 64726

Earnings per common share

Basic $2.47 $2.32 $1.91 $2.57 $2.05

Diluted 2.46 2.31 1.90 2.55 2.04

Weighted-average common

shares outstanding

Basic 28775 29656 30245 30928 31566

Diluted 28812 29706 30318 31184 31680

Cash dividends per share $330 $290 $.265 $.245 $.225

Total assets $1097455 $993825 $949653 $914282 $771069

Long-term debt non-current 299170 225256 237530 219124 142273

Fiscal 2011 included the favorable effect of an adjustment of $606 to income tax expense primarily related to changes in estimated tax accruals for open
tax periods

Fiscal 2010 included the favorable effect of an adjustment of $838 to income tax expense primarily related to changes in estimated tax accruals for open
tax periods

Fiscal 2009 included pre-tax unusual charges of approximately $16500 which primarily consisted of severance and other costs related to the

consolidation of certain production operations within the Companys Bronze segment costs related to operational and systems improvements in

several of the Companys other businesses and asset adjustments resulting from current market conditions In addition fiscal 2009 earnings included

the favorable effect of an adjustment of $1255 to income tax expense primarily related to the Companys ability to utilize European tax loss

carryover generated in prior years and changes in the estimated tax accruals for open tax periods

Fiscal 2008 included reduction in income taxes of $1882 to reflect the adjustment of net deferred tax liabilities resulting from the enactment of lower

statutory income tax rates in certain European countries

Fiscal 2007 included net pre-tax charge of approximately $8765 which consisted primarily of special charges related to the acceleration of earn-out

payments in the resolution of employment agreements from the Milso Industries acquisition and pre-tax charges related to severance costs incurred

in several of the Companys segments partially
offset by pre-tax gain on the sale of the marketing consultancy business of the Merchandising

Solutions segment and favorable legal settlements net of related
legal costs in the Casket segment
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of Matthews International

Corporation and related notes thereto In addition see Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

included in Part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth certain income statement data of the Company expressed as percentage of net sales for the

periods indicated and the percentage change in such income statement data from year to year

Years Ended September 30 Percentage Change

2011 2010 2009 20112010 20102009

Sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 9.4% 5.2%

Gross profit
39.1 39.3 37.7 8.7 9.7

Operating profit
13.2 14.2 12.9 1.7 15.4

Net income attributable to

Matthews shareholders 8.1 8.4 7.4 4.8 19.6

Comparison of Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 2010

Sales for the year
ended September 30 2011 were $898.8 million compared to $821.8 million for the year ended

September 30 2010 The increase resulted principally from the impact of acquisitions higher sales volume in the Companys

Brand Solutions businesses and changes in the values of foreign currencies against the U.S dolla which had favorable

impact of approximately $11.4 million on the Companys consolidated sales compared to fiscal 2010

In the Memorialization businesses Bronze segment sales for fiscal 2011 were $224.8 million compared to $224.2 million

for fiscal 2010 The increase primarily reflected the December 2009 acquisition of United Memorial Products Inc UMP
and the favorable impact of changes in foreign currency

values against the U.S dollar Excluding the impact of acquisitions

and currency changes fiscal 2011 Bronze segment sales declined compared to fiscal 2010 reflecting lower sales volume of

bronze memorial and architectural products and an unfavorable change in product mix Sales for the Casket segment were

$238.8 million for fiscal 2011 compared to $210.3 million for fiscal 2010 The increase resulted principally from acquisitions

Excluding the impact of acquisitions fiscal 2011 Casket segment sales declined principally reflecting slightly lower unit

volume and an unfavorable change in product mix Lower sales excluding acquisitions for both the Bronze and Casket

segments reflected the impact of decline in the estimated number of casketed deaths compared to the prior year Based

on available published data U.S deaths for the year ended September 30 2011 were estimated to have increased from

fiscal 2010 however casketed deaths non-cremation were estimated to have declined from the prior year Sales for the

Cremation segment were $43.8 million for fiscal 2011 compared to $39.4 million year ago The increase principally resulted

from higher sales in all of the segment principal markets U.S U.K and Europe and the acquisition of small manufacturer

of cremation equipment in the U.K in March 2010 In the Company Brand Solutions businesses sales for the Graphics

Imaging segment in fiscal 2011 were $269.0 million compared to $240.0 million year ago The increase resulted principally

from higher sales in all markets Europe U.S U.K and Asia the July 2011 acquisition of Kroma Pre-Press Preparation

Systems Industry Trade Inc Kroma and the favorable impact from changes in the values of foreign currencies against

the U.S dollar Marking Products segment sales for the year ended September 30 2011 were $61 .9 million compared to

$51.1 million for fiscal 2010 The increase was principally due to higher sales of equipment and consumables in the U.S

and China two small acquisitions in fiscal 2011 and the favorable impact of changes in foreign currency values Sales for the

Merchandising Solutions segment were $60.6 million for fiscal 2011 compared to $56.9 million year ago The improvement

was attributable to an increase in project volume to several large global customers in fiscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS continued

Gross profit for the year ended September 30 2011 was $351.7 million or 39.1% of sales compared to $323.4 million

or 39.3% of sales for fiscal 2010 The increase in fiscal 2011 consolidated gross profit compared to fiscal 2010 reflected

higher sales in the Brand Solutions businesses and the benefit of cost structure initiatives The increases were partially offset

by higher commodity costs primarily in the Bronze and Casket segments

Selling and administrative expenses for the year ended September 30 2011 were $233.1 million or 25.9% of sales compared

to $206.8 million or 25.2% of sales for fiscal 2010 The increase primarily resulted from higher sales and the impact of

acquisitions

Operating profit for fiscal 2011 was $1 18.5 million compared to $1 16.6 million for fiscal 2010 The increase in operating

profit for fiscal 2011 reflected the impact of acquisitions and favorable impact of $1.4 million from changes in foreign

currency values against the U.S dollar These increases were partially offset by higher commodity costs primarily in the

Bronze and Casket segments Bronze segment operating profit for fiscal 2011 was $52.5 million compared to $56.2 million

for fiscal 2010 The decrease in fiscal 2011 operating profit compared to fiscal 2010 reflected lower sales including an

unfavorable shift in product mix and significant increase in bronze metal costs in fiscal 2011 Operating profit for the

Casket segment for fiscal 2011 was $26.8 million compared to $26.2 million for fiscal 2010 The increase in Casket segment

operating profit for fiscal 2011 primarily reflected the benefit of acquisitions Excluding acquisitions Casket segment

operating profit declined primarily reflecting an unfavorable change in product mix and the impact of higher steel and fuel

costs partially offset by the benefit of recent cost structure initiatives Cremation segment operating profit for the year

ended September 30 2011 was $5.7 million compared to $4.9 million
year ago Fiscal 2011 operating profit reflected

higher sales and the impact of the March 2010 acquisition of small cremation equipment manufacturer in the U.K Graphics

Imaging operating profit for fiscal 2011 was $22.4 million compared to $21.1 million for 2010 The increase in fiscal 2011

reflected higher sales improvements in the segments U.S cost structure the acquisition of Kroma and the favorable impact

of changes in foreign currency values partially offset by higher manufacturing costs in the segments European gravure

manufacturing operations Operating profit for the Marking Products segment for fiscal 2011 was $7.8 million compared

to $5.8 million year ago The increase in Marking Products segment operating profit principally reflected the impact of

acquisitions and higher sales in the U.S and China These increases were partially offset by an increase in research and

development costs The Merchandising Solutions segment operating profit was $3.3 million for fiscal 2011 compared to

$2.4 million for fiscal 2010 The increase principally reflected the impact of higher sales

Investment income for the year ended September 30 2011 was $1.4 million compared to $2.5 million for the
year ended

September 30 2010 The decrease principally reflected decline in the market value of investments held in trust for certain

of the Companys benefit plans Interest expense for fiscal 2011 was $8.2 million compared to $7.4 million last year The

increase in interest expense reflected higher average debt levels resulting primarily from recent acquisitions

Other income deductions net for the year ended September 30 2011 represented an increase in pre-tax income of $298000

compared to reduction in pre-tax income of $1.3 million in 2010 The favorable impact on other income deductions net

in fiscal 2011 primarily reflected foreign currency exchange gain on the settlement of an intercompany loan
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS conunued

The Companys effective tax rate for fiscal 2011 was 34.4% compared to 35.0% for fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2011 and 2010

included the favorable impact of adjustments totaling $606000 and $838000 respectively in income tax expense primarily

related to changes in the estimated tax accruals for open tax periods Excluding these adjustments from both periods the

Companys effective tax rate was 35.0% for fiscal year 2011 and 35.8% for fiscal year 2010 The decrease in the fiscal 2011

effective tax rate compared to fiscal 2010 primarily reflected the impact of the Companys European tax structure initiatives

The difference between the Companys effective tax rate and the Federal statutory rate of 35.0% primarily reflected the

impact of state taxes offset by lower foreign income taxes

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest was $1.1 million forfiscal 2011 compared to $2.7 million in fiscal 2010

The decrease related principally to the Companys acquisition effective as of the beginning of fiscal 2011 of the remaining

25% interest in one of its less than wholly-owned German graphics businesses and the acquisition of the remaining 22%

interest in Saueressig GmbH Co KG Saueressig in April 2011

Comparison of Fiscal 2010 and Fiscal 2009

Sales for the year
ended September 30 2010 were $821 .8 million compared to $780.9 million for the year ended

September 30 2009 The increase resulted principally from the impact of acquisitions and higher sales volume in several

of the Companys businesses For the year ended September 30 2010 changes in foreign currency values against the U.S

dollar had favorable impact of approximately $3.9 million on the Companys consolidated sales compared to fiscal 2009

In the Memorialization businesses Bronze segment sales for fiscal 2010 were $224.2 million compared to $215.9 million

for fiscal 2009 The increase primarily reflected the acquisition of UMP The increase was partially offset by decline in

bronze memorial unit volume Sales for the Casket segment were $210.3 million for fiscal 2010 compared to $203.2 million

for fiscal 2009 The increase resulted principally from the acquisition of several casket businesses partially offset by lower

unit volume The decline in sales excluding acquisitions for both the Bronze and Casket segments reflected the impact of

decline in the estimated number of casketed deaths compared to the prior year Based on available published data U.S

deaths for the year ended September 30 2010 were estimated to have declined Casketed deaths non-cremation were also

estimated to have declined from fiscal 2009 Sales for the Cremation segment were $39.4 million for fiscal 2010 compared

to $30.9 million in fiscal 2009 The increase principally resulted from the acquisition of small manufacturer of cremation

equipment in the U.K and higher sales in the U.S and European markets In the Companys Brand Solutions businesses

sales for the Graphics Imaging segment in fiscal 2010 were $240.0 million compared to $235.0 million in the prior year

The increase resulted principally from higher sales by Saueressig and the impact of the acquisition of small graphics operation

headquartered in Hong Kong in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 partially offset by lower sales in the U.S and U.K markets

Marking Products segment sales for the year ended September 30 2010 were $51.1 million compared to $42.4 million for

fiscal 2009 The increase was principally due to higher unit volume and the acquisition of small European distributor Sales

for the Merchandising Solutions segment were $56.9 million for fiscal 2010 compared to $53.5 million in fiscal 2009 The

increase was attributable to an increase in project volume in the last six months of fiscal 2010

Gross profit for the year ended September 30 2010 was $323.4 million compared to $294.8 million for fiscal 2009

Consolidated gross profit as percent of sales increased to 39.3% for fiscal 2010 from 37.7% for fiscal 2009 Gross profit

for fiscal 2009 included unusual charges totaling approximately $9.0 million consisting of severance and other expenses

related to the facility consolidations in the Bronze segment and costs related to operational and system improvements in

several of the Companys other segments The increase in fiscal 2010 consolidated gross profit and gross profit percentage

compared to fiscal 2009 also reflected the benefit of fiscal 2009 cost structure changes particularly in the Saueressig operation

and the Casket and Marking Products segments
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS continued

Selling and administrative expenses for the year ended September 30 2010 were $206.8 million compared to $193.8 million

for fiscal 2009 Consolidated selling and administrative expenses as percent of sales were 25.2% for the year ended

September 30 2010 compared to 24.8% in the prior year The increases in costs and percentage of sales primarily resulted

from higher pension expense and the impact of acquisitions The increase in pension cost primarily reflected unfavorable

changes in the values of plan assets and reduction in the actuarial discount rate Unusual charges included in selling and

administrative expenses totaled $7.5 million for fiscal 2009 and consisted primarily of Saueressig integration costs increased

bad debt expense termination-related expenses and costs related to operational and systems improvements These unusual

charges included consulting fees incurred for assistance in the operational and financial integration of Saueressig into

Matthews Bad debt expense particularly in the Casket segment was significantly higher in fiscal 2009 reflecting economic

conditions The increase resulted from the deterioration in the aging of outstanding accounts receivable Employee

termination-related and the other costs in connection with operational and systems improvements primarily reflected the

Companys initiatives as result of the recession The principal objectives of these initiatives were to better align the cost

structures of the Companys businesses with their respective revenue run rates

Operating profit for fiscal 2010 was $116.6 million compared to $101 .0 million for fiscal 2009 Operating profit for fiscal

2010 included an increase of approximately $5.2 million in pension cost Operating profit for fiscal 2009 included unusual

charges of approximately $16.5 million Bronze segment operating profit for fiscal 2010 was $56.2 million compared to

$57.6 million for fiscal 2009 Bronze segment operating profit for fiscal 2009 included unusual charges of approximately

$7.2 million principally relating to facility consolidations The decrease in fiscal 2010 operating profit compared to fiscal 2009

reflected lower sales volume excluding the UMP acquisition and higher pension cost Operating profit for the Casket

segment for fiscal 2010 was $26.2 million compared to $17.7 million for fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2009 Casket segment operating

profit included unusual charges of approximately $2.7 million Excluding the impact of the unusual charges in fiscal 2009
Casket segment operating profit for fiscal 2010 increased by $5.8 million reflecting the benefit of cost structure changes

initiated in fiscal 2009 and the impact of acquisitions Cremation segment operating profit for the year ended September 30
2010 was $4.9 million compared to $5.0 million in fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2010 operating profit reflected higher sales and the

impact of the March 2010 acquisition of small cremation equipment manufacturer in the U.K offset by the impact of an

unfavorable change in product mix and higher pension cost The Graphics Imaging segment operating profit for fiscal 2010

was $21.1 million compared to $19.2 million for 2009 Operating profit in fiscal 2009 included unusual charges of

approximately $3.1 million Excluding the effect of the unusual charges operating profit decreased approximately $1.2 million

in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009 decline in operating profit in the U.S graphics operations offset higher operating

profit from Saueressig and the impact of the acquisition of small graphics business headquartered in Hong Kong Operating

profit for the Marking Products segment for fiscal 2010 was $5.8 million compared to $1.5 million in fiscal 2009 Marking

Products operating profit for fiscal 2009 included unusual charges of approximately $1.9 million The increase in year-over-year

operating profit excluding the unusual charges primarily reflected higher sales and the favorable impact of fiscal 2009 cost

structure initiatives The Merchandising Solutions segment operating profit was $2.4 million for fiscal 2010 compared to an

operating loss of $56000 for fiscal 2009 The increase principally reflected the impact of higher sales and fiscal 2009 unusual

charges of approximately $1.3 million

Investment income for the
year ended September 30 2010 was $2.5 million compared to $2.0 million for the year ended

September 30 2009 The increase reflected higher average levels of invested funds and improved asset performance

Interest expense for fiscal 2010 was $7.4 million compared to $12.1 million last year The decrease in interest expense

primarily reflected lower interest rates and lower average debt levels

Other income deductions net for the year ended September 30 2010 represented reduction in pre-tax income of

$1 .3 million compared to reduction in pre-tax income of $12000 in 2009 The fiscal 2010 reduction in income primarily

reflected foreign currency exchange losses on intercompany loans
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS continued

The Companys effective tax rate for fiscal 2010 was 35.0% compared to 34.4% for fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2010 included the

favorable impact of adjustments totaling $838000 in income tax expense primarily related to changes in the estimated tax

accruals for open tax periods Fiscal 2009 included the favorable impact of adjustments totaling $1.3 million in income tax

expense related to the Companys ability to utilize tax loss carryover
in Europe and changes in the estimated tax accruals

for open tax periods Excluding the one-time adjustments in both periods the Companys effective tax rate was 35.8% for

fiscal years 2010 and 2009 The difference between the Companys effective tax rate and the Federal statutory rate of

35.0% primarily reflected the impact of state and foreign income taxes

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest was $2.7 million for fiscal 2010 compared to $1 .9 million in fiscal 2009

The increase primarily related to the improvement in operating
results for Saueressig

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Net cash provided by operating activities was $95.6 million for the year ended September 30 2011 compared to $106.5

million and $90.9 million for fiscal 2010 and 2009 respectively Operating cash flow for fiscal 2011 primarily reflected net

income adjusted for depreciation and amortization stock-based compensation expense and an increase in deferred taxes

partially offset by net increase in working capital items In addition the Company made cash contribution of $9.0 million

to its principal pension plan Operating cash flow for fiscal 2010 primarily reflected net income adjusted for depreciation

and amortization stock-based compensation expense and an increase in deferred taxes partially offset by cash contribution

of $9.0 million to the Companys principal pension plan Operating cash flow for fiscal 2009 primarily reflected net income

adjusted for depreciation and amortization stock-based compensation expense and an increase in deferred taxes partially

offset by cash contribution of $12.0 million to the Companys principal pension plan

Cash used in investing activities was $106.8 million for the year
ended September 30 2011 compared to $54.3 million and

$32.7 million for fiscal years 2010 and 2009 respectively Investing activities for fiscal 2011 primarily reflected payments

net of cash acquired of $84.4 million for acquisitions and capital expenditures of $22.4 million Investing activities for fiscal

2010 primarily reflected payments net of cash acquired of $32.3 million for acquisitions capital expenditures of $21.4

million and purchases of investment securities net of proceeds from dispositions
of $690000 Investing activities for fiscal

2009 primarily reflected payments net of cash acquired of $11.0 million for acquisitions capital expenditures of $19.4

million and purchases of investment securities of $2.6 million

Capital expenditures were $22.4 million for the year ended September 30 2011 compared to $21.4 million and $19.4

million for fiscal 2010 and 2009 respectively Capital expenditures in each of the last three fiscal years
reflected reinvestment

in the Companys business segments and were made primarily for the purchase of new manufacturing machinery equipment

and facilities designed to improve product quality increase manufacturing efficiency lower production costs and meet

regulatory requirements Capital expenditures for the last three fiscal years were primarily financed through operating cash

Capital spending for property plant and equipment has averaged $21.1 million for the last three fiscal years Capital spending

for fiscal 2012 is currently expected to be approximately $30.0 million The Company expects to generate
sufficient cash from

operations to fund all anticipated capital spending projects

Cash provided by financing activities for the year
ended September 30 2011 was $10.4 million reflecting proceeds net of

repayments on long-term debt of $68.9 million purchases of treasury stock of $44.6 million proceeds from the sale of

treasury stock stock option exercises of $1.9 million payment of dividends to the Companys shareholders of $9.6 million

$0.33 per share and distributions of $6.2 million to noncontrolling interests Cash used in financing activities for the year

ended September 30 2010 was $51 .5 million reflecting repayments net of proceeds on long-term debt of $8.8 million

purchases
of treasury stock of $35.3 million proceeds from the sale of treasury stock stock option exercises of $1 .5 million

payment of dividends to the Companys shareholders of $8.7 million $0.29 per share and distributions of $234000 to

noncontrolling interests Cash used in financing activities for the year ended September 30 2009 was $53.6 million reflecting

repayments net of proceeds on long-term debt of $1 5.7 million purchases
of treasury stock of $28.8 million proceeds

from the sale of treasury stock stock option exercises of $1 .2 million payment of dividends to the Companys shareholders

of $8.2 million $0265 per share and distributions of $2.3 million to noncontrolling interests
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ITEM MANAGEMENTs DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS continued

In December 2010 the Company entered into new domestic Revolving Credit Facility with syndicate of financial

institutions The maximum amount of borrowings available under the new facility is $300.0 million and borrowings under

the facility bear interest at LIBOR plus factor ranging from .00% to .50% based on the Companys leverage ratio The

facilitys maturity is December 201 The new facility replaced the Companys $225.0 million Revolving Credit Facility The

leverage ratio is defined as net indebtedness divided by EBITDA earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization
The Company is required to pay an annual commitment fee ranging from .20% to .30% based on the Companys leverage

ratio of the unused portion of the facility

The Revolving Credit Facility requires the Company to maintain certain leverage and interest coverage ratios portion of

the facility not to exceed $25.0 million is available for the issuance of trade and standby letters of credit Outstanding

borrowings on the Revolving Credit Facility at September 30 2011 and 2010 were $250.0 million and $187.0 million

respectively The weighted-average interest rate on outstanding borrowings at September 30 2011 and 2010 was 2.59%
and 2.69% respectively

The Company has entered into the following interest rate swaps

Fixed Interest Rate

Interest Spread at

Effective Date Amount Rate September 30 2011 Maturity Date

September2007 $25 million 4.77% 1.25% September2012
May 2008 20 million 3.72% 1.25% September 2012

October 2008 20 million 3.46% .25% October 2011

May2011 25million 1.37% 1.25% May2014
October2011 25million 1.67% 1.25% October2015
November2011 25 million 2.13% 1.25% November2014
March 2012 25 million 2.44% 1.25% March 2015

September 2012 25 million 3.03% 1.25% December 2015

November2012 25 million 1.33% 1.25% November2015

The interest rate swaps have been designated as cash flow hedges of the future variable interest payments under the Revolving
Credit Facility which are considered probable of occurring Based on the Companys assessment all the critical terms of

each of the hedges matched the underlying terms of the hedged debt and related forecasted interest payments and as

such these hedges were considered highly effective

The fair value of the interest rate swaps reflected an unrealized loss of $7.2 million $4.4 million after tax at September 30
2011 that is included in equity as part of accumulated other comprehensive loss Assuming market rates remain constant with

the rates at September 30 2011 approximately $1.3 million of the $4.4 million loss included in accumulated other

comprehensive loss is expected to be recognized in earnings as an adjustment to interest expense over the next twelve months

The Company through certain of its German subsidiaries has credit facility with European bank The maximum amount
of borrowings available under this facility is 25.0 million Euros $33.5 million Outstanding borrowings under the credit

facility totaled 23.6 million Euros $31.6 million and 12.0 million Euros $16.4 million at September 30 2011 and 2010
respectively The weighted-average interest rate on outstanding borrowings under the facility at September 30 2011 and

2010 was 2.38% and .58% respectively The facilitys maturity is September 2012 The Company has the ability and intent

to renew this borrowing upon maturity

The Company through its German subsidiary Saueressig has several loans with various European banks Outstanding

borrowings on these loans totaled 8.3 million Euros $1 1.2 million and 7.9 million Euros $10.8 million at September 30
2011 and 2010 respectively The weighted-average interest rate on outstanding borrowings of Saueressig at September 30
2011 and 2010 was 6.05% and 6.18% respectively
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS continued

The Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary Matthews International S.p.A has several loans with various Italian

banks Outstanding borrowings on these loans totaled 8.7 million Euros $1 1.6 million and 12.1 million Euros $16.5 million

at September 30 2011 and 2010 respectively Matthews International SpA also has three lines of credit totaling 11 .4 million

Euros $1 5.2 million with the same Italian banks Outstanding borrowings on these lines were 493000 Euros $661000

and 2.1 million Euros $2.8 million at September 30 2011 and 2010 respectively
The weighted-average interest rate on

outstanding Matthews International SpA borrowings at September 30 2011 and 2010 was 3.11% and 3.47% respectively

The Company through its Turkish subsidiary Kroma acquired in July 2011 has several loans with various Turkish banks

Outstanding borrowings on these loans totaled 13.3 million Turkish Lira $7.2 million at September 30 2011 The weighted-

average interest rate on outstanding borrowings of Kroma was 9.27% at September 30 2011

The Company has stock repurchase program Under the current authorization the Companys Board of Directors has

authorized the repurchase of total of 2500000 shares of Matthews common stock under the program of which 2169470

shares had been repurchased as of September 30 2011 In November 2011 the Company Board of Directors approved

the continuation of its stock repurchase program and increased the total authorization for stock repurchases by an additional

2500000 shares The buy-back program is designed to increase shareholder value enlarge the Companys holdings of its

common stock and add to earnings per
share Repurchased shares may be retained in treasury utilized for acquisitions or

reissued to employees or other purchasers subject to the restrictions of the Companys Restated Articles of Incorporation

Consolidated working capital was $208.1 million at September 30 2011 compared to $187.5 million and $173.1 million

at September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively Working capital at September 30 2011 reflected an increase in accounts

receivable and inventory in connection with recent acquisitions Working capital at September 30 2010 reflected an increase

in accounts receivable and inventory in connection with recent acquisitions Working capital at September 30 2009 reflected

an increase in cash and investments and reduction in current maturities of long-term debt Cash and cash equivalents were

$60.3 million at September 30 2011 compared to $59.7 million and $57.8 million at September 30 2010 and 2009

respectively The Companys current ratio was 2.3 at September 30 2011 2010 and 2009

ENVIRONMENTAL MAIFERS

The Companys operations are subject to various federal state and local laws and regulations relating to the protection
of

the environment These laws and regulations impose limitations on the discharge of materials into the environment and

require the Company to obtain and operate in compliance with conditions of permits and other government authorizations

As such the Company has developed environmental health and safety policies and procedures that include the proper

handling storage and disposal of hazardous materials

The Company is party to various environmental matters These include obligations to investigate and mitigate the effects on

the environment of the disposal of certain materials at various operating and non-operating sites The Company is currently

performing environmental assessments and remediation at these sites as appropriate In addition prior to its acquisition

The York Group Inc York was identified along with others by the Environmental Protection Agency as potentially

responsible party for remediation of landfill site in York Pennsylvania At this time the Company has not been joined in

any lawsuit or administrative order related to the site or its clean-up

At September 30 2011 an accrual of approximately $6.2 million had been recorded for environmental remediation of which

$788000 was classified in other current liabilities representing managements best estimate of the probable and reasonably

estimable costs of the Companys known remediation obligations The accrual which reflects previously established reserves

assumed with the acquisition of York and additional reserves recorded as purchase accounting adjustment does not consder

the effects of inflation and anticipated expenditures are not discounted to their present value Changes in the accrued

environmental remediation obligation from the prior fiscal year reflect payments charged against the accrual
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS continued

While final resolution of these contingencies could result in costs different than current accruals management believes the

ultimate outcome will not have significant effect on the Companys consolidated results of operations or financial position

ACQUISITIONS

Fiscal 2011

Acquisition spending net of cash acquired during the year ended September 30 2011 totaled $84.4 million The acquisitions
were not individually material to the Companys consolidated financial position or results of operations and primarily included

the following

In August 2011 the Company acquired Lightning Pick Technologies Inc LPT manufacturer that develops
installs and supports paperless order fulfillment solutions The transaction is intended to expand the Companys
presence and product breadth in the marking products industry

In July 2011 the Company entered into an agreement to acquire 70% interest in Kroma leading provider of

pre-press services and roto-gravure printing cylinders in Turkey The acquisition is designed to further extend

Matthews presence as the leading provider of reprographic pre-press products and services to the European

packaging and tobacco markets The Company completed the purchase of 61.5% interest in July 2011 and the

additional 8.5% interest will be purchased in fiscal 2012 In addition the Company entered into an option

agreement related to the remaining 30% interest in Kroma

In April 2011 the Company completed the purchase of the remaining 22% interest in Saueressig for 19.3 million

Euros $27.4 million completing the option agreement in connection with the May 2008 acquisition of 78%
interest in Saueressig

In March 2011 the Company acquired Innovative Picking Technologies Inc IPTI manufacturer of paperless

order fulfillment systems The transaction is intended to expand the Companys presence and product breadth in

the marking products industry

In October 2010 the Company acquired Freeman Metal Products Inc and its affiliated companies Freeman
manufacturer and distributor of caskets The purchase price for the acquisition was $22.8 million plus additional

consideration up to $6.0 million contingent on operating performance over the next three years The transaction

is intended to provide synergies in the manufacturing and distribution of caskets and expand the Companys
market presence in the Southeast and South Central regions of the United States

In October 2010 the Company acquired the remaining 25% interest in Rudolf Reproflex GmbH Co KG
Reproflex The Company acquired 75% interest in Reproflex in 2001

Fiscal 2010

Acquisition spending net of cash acquired during the year ended September 30 2010 totaled $32.3 million The acquisitions

primarily included the following

In August 2010 the Company acquired Newmark of Colorado and its affiliated companies Newmark
distributor of primarily York brand caskets in the West region of the United States The transaction was designed
as an asset purchase and was intended to expand the Companys casket distribution capabilities in the western

United States

In April 2010 the Company acquired Reynoldsville Casket Company Reynoldsville manufacturer and

distributor of caskets primarily in the Northeast region of the United States The acquisition was structured as an

asset purchase and was intended to expand the Companys casket distribution capabilities in the northeastern

United States
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS continued

In March 2010 the Company acquired an 80% interest in Furnace Construction Cremators Limited FCC
manufacturer of cremation equipment located in the United Kingdom The acquisition was designed to expand

the Companys global presence in the European cremation markets

In February 2010 the Company acquired A.J Distribution Inc A.J Distribution distributor of primarily York

brand caskets in the Northwest region of the United States The transaction was structured as an asset purchase

and was intended to expand the Companys casket distribution capabilities
in the northwestern United States

In December 2009 the Company acquired UMP primarily supplier of granite memorial products
and caskets in

the West region of the United States The transaction was structured as an asset purchase and was designed to

extend Matthews presence in the broad granite
market

Fiscal 2009

Acquisition spending net of cash acquired during the year
ended September 30 2009 totaled $1 1.0 million The acquisitions

primarily included the following

In July 2009 the Company acquired an 80% interest in Tact Group Limited small graphics business headquartered

in Hong Kong The acquisition was intended to expand the Companys graphics imaging capabilities in Asia

In December 2008 the Company acquired an 80% interest in Gem Matthews International srI cremation

equipment manufacturer in Italy The acquisition was intended to expand Matthews cremation equipment

manufacturing capabilities in Europe

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Matthews has three-pronged strategy to attain annual growth in earnings per share This strategy which has remained

unchanged from prior years consists of the following internal growth which includes organic growth productivity

improvements new product development and the expansion into new markets with existing products acquisitions and

share repurchases under the Companys stock repurchase program see Liquidity and Capital Resources For the past ten

fiscal years the Company has achieved an average annual increase in earnings per share of 10.9%

For fiscal 2012 the Company continues to face several challenges The uneven pace of the economic recovery
will influence

the pace of growth for all segments Recent financial market issues in Europe could affect several of the countries in which the

Company operates which may also have an unfavorable impact on currency exchange rates In addition the Memorialization

businesses continue to operate
in climate of relatively flat death rates competitive pressures on pricing and product mix and

volatile commodity costs Howeve the Company is continuously working on productivity
and cost reduction initiatives to

strengthen all of its businesses In addition recent acquisitions are expected to favorably impact fiscal 2012 results

On this basis the Company currently estimates fiscal 2012 earnings per share to grow in the mid-single digit percentage

range over fiscal 2011 excluding unusual items from both years Based on current forecasts earnings for the fiscal 2012

first quarter are expected to be lower than the fiscal 2011 first quarter with the projected growth for the remainder of the

fiscal year
sufficient to achieve the Company objective for the full fiscal year
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS continued

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reporting period Therefore the determination of estimates requires the exercise of judgment based on various assumptions
and other factors such as historical experience economic conditions and in some cases actuarial techniques Actual results

may differ from those estimates discussion of market risks affecting the Company can be found in Item 7A Quantitative
and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The Companys significant accounting policies are included in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in

this Annual Report on Form 10-K Management believes that the application of these policies on consistent basis enables
the Company to provide useful and reliable financial information about the Companys operating results and financial

condition The following accounting policies involve significant estimates which were considered critical to the preparation
of the Companys consolidated financial statements for the year ended September 30 2011

Trade Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Trade receivables are carried at their estimated collectible amounts Trade credit is generally extended on short-term basis
thus trade receivables do not bear interest although finance charge may be applied to such receivables that are more than
30 days past due The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on an evaluation of specific customer accounts for which
available facts and circumstances indicate collectibility may be uncertain In addition the allowance includes reserve for

all customers based on historical collection experience

Long-Lived Assets

Property plant and equipment goodwill and other intangible assets are carried at cost Depreciation on property plant and

equipment is computed primarily on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets Property plant
and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of such assets may not be recoverable

Recoverability of assets is determined by evaluating the estimated undiscounted net
cash flows of the operations to which the assets relate An impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds the fair value which is based on discounted cash flow analysis

Goodwill is not amortized but is subject to periodic review for Impairment In general when the carrying value of reporting
unit exceeds its implied fair value an impairment loss must be recognized For purposes of testing for impairment the

Company uses combination of valuation techniques including discounted cash flows Intangible assets are amortized
over their estimated useful lives unless such lives are considered to be indefinite significant decline in cash flows generated
from these assets may result in write-down of the carrying values of the related assets The Company performed its annual

impairment reviews in the second quarters of fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 and determined that no adjustments to the carrying
values of goodwill or other intangibles with indefinite lives were necessary at those times

Share-Based Payment

Stock-based compensation cost is measured at grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense
over the employee requisite service period
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS continued

Pension and Postretirement Benefits

Pension assets and liabilities are determined on an actuarial basis and are affected by the market value of plan assets estimates

of the expected return on plan assets and the discount rate used to determine the present value of benefit obligations

Actual changes in the fair market value of plan assets and differences between the actual return on plan assets the expected

return on plan assets and changes in the selected discount rate will affect the amount of pension cost

The Companys principal pension plan maintains substantial portion of its assets in equity securities in accordance with the

investment policy established by the Companys pension board Based on an analysis of the historical performance of the

plans assets and information provided by its independent investment adviso the Company set the long-term rate of return

assumption for these assets at 8.0% at September 30 2011 for purposes of determining pension cost and funded status

The Companys discount rate assumption used in determining the present value of the projected benefit obligation is based

upon published indices as of September 30 2011 and September 30 2010 for the fiscal year end valuation The discount

rate was 4.75% 5.25% and 5.50% in fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Environmental

Environmental liabilities are recorded when the Companys obligation is probable and reasonably estimable Accruals for

losses from environmental remediation obligations do not consider the effects of inflation and anticipated expenditures are

not discounted to their present value

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are generally recognized
when title and risk of loss pass to the custome which is typically at the time of product

shipment For pre-need sales of memorials and vases revenue is recognized when the memorial has been manufactured

to the customers specifications e.g name and birth date title has been transferred to the customer and the memorial

and vase are placed in storage for future delivery liability
has been recorded for the estimated costs of finishing pre-need

bronze memorials and vases that have been manufactured and placed in storage prior to July 2003 for future delivery

Beginning July 2003 revenue is deferred by the Company on the portion of pre-need sales attributable to the final finishing

and storage of the pre-need merchandise Deferred revenue for final finishing is recognized at the time the pre-need

merchandise is finished and shipped to the customer Deferred revenue related to storage is recognized on straight-line

basis over the estimated average time that pre-need
merchandise is held in storage At September 30 2011 the Company

held 333174 memorials and 236460 vases in its storage
facilities under the pre-need sales program

Construction revenues are recognized under the percentage-of-completion method of accounting using the cost-to-cost method

The Company offers rebates to certain customers participating in volume purchase programs Rebates are estimated and

recorded as reduction in sales at the time the Companys products are sold
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS continued

Contractual Cash Obligations

Revolving credit facilities

Notes payable to banks

Short-term borrowings

Capital lease obligations

Non-cancelable operating leases

Total contractual cash obligations

LONG-TERM CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS

The following table summarizes the Companys contractual obligations at September 30 2011 and the effect such

obligations are expected to have on its liquidity and cash flows in future periods

Payments due in fiscal year

Total 2012 2013to2014 2015to2016 After2Ol6

Dollar amounts in thousands

$281593 $281593

31193 15299 14588 1214 92

661 661

3865 2165 1700

20110 7957 8754 2935 464

$337422 $26082 $25042 $285742 $556

significant portion of the loans included in the table above bear interest at variable rates At September 30 2011 the

weighted-average interest rate was 2.59% on the Companys domestic Revolving Credit Facility 2.38% on the credit facility

through the Companys wholly-owned German subsidiaries 3.11% on bank loans to the Companys wholly-owned

subsidiary Matthews International SpA 6.05% on bank loans to its wholly-owned subsidiary Saueressig and 9.27%
on bank loans to its majority-owned subsidiary Kroma

Benefit payments under the Companys principal retirement plan are made from plan assets while benefit payments under

the supplemental retirement plan and postretirement benefit plan are funded from the Companys operating cash Under

IRS regulations the Company was not required to make any significant contributions to its
principal retirement plan in

fiscal 2011 however in fiscal 2011 the Company made contribution of $9.0 million to its principal retirement plan The

Company is not required to make any significant cash contributions to its principal retirement plan in fiscal 2012 The

Company estimates that benefit payments to participants under its retirement plans including its supplemental retirement

plan and postretirement benefit payments will be approximately $6.0 million and $1.1 million respectively in fiscal 2012
The amounts are expected to increase incrementally each year thereafte to $7.6 million and $1.5 million in 2016 The

Company believes that its current liquidity sources combined with its operating cash flow and borrowing capacity will be

sufficient to meet its capital needs for the foreseeable future

In connection with its July 2011 acquisition of 70% interest in Kroma the Company entered into an option agreement
related to the remaining 30% interest in Kroma The option agreement contains put and call provisions for the purchase
of the remaining 30% interest in future years at price to be determined by formula based upon future operating results

of Kroma The Company has recorded an estimate of $10.2 million in Arrangement with noncontrolling interest on the

September 30 2011 Consolidated Balance Sheet representing the current estimate of the future purchase price The

timing of the exercise of the put and call provisions is not presently determinable

Unrecognized tax benefits are positions taken or expected to be taken on an income tax return that may result in additional

payments to tax authorities If tax authority agrees with the tax position taken or expected to be taken or the applicable

statute of limitations expires then additional payments will not be
necessary As of September 30 2011 the Company had

unrecognized tax benefits excluding penalties and interest of approximately $2.9 million The timing of potential future

payments related to the unrecognized tax benefits is not presently determinable

INFLATION

Except for the volatility in the cost of bronze ingot steel and fuel see Results of Operations inflation has not had material

impact on the Company over the past three years nor is it anticipated to have material impact for the foreseeable future
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS continued

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued an amendment to the guidance for goodwill

and other intangibles The amendment applies to the goodwill impairment test and permits an entity to first assess

qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its

carrying amount as basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test The

more likely than not threshold is defined as likelihood of more than 50 percent The amendment is effective for annual

and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2011 Early adoption is

permitted This amendment will be adopted by the Company for the quarter ended March 31 2012 Upon adoption this

amendment is not expected to have material effect on the financial statements

In June 2011 the FASB issued an amendment to the guidance on the presentation of comprehensive income The

amendment requires that comprehensive income be presented either in single continuous statement of comprehensive

income or in two separate but consecutive statements In both choices an entity is required to present on the face of the

financial statements reclassification adjustments for items that are reclassified from other comprehensive income to net

income in the statement where the components of net income and other comprehensive income are presented This

amendment is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 2011 Early

adoption is permitted The Company is evaluating the impact of this amendment on its financial statements and the timing

of its adoption

In May 2011 the FASB issued an amendment to revise the wording used to describe many of the requirements for

measuring fair value and disclosing information about fair value measurements This amendment clarifies the FASBs

intention about the application of fair value In addition the amendment changes certain principles or requirements for

measuring fair value and disclosure of such measurements The amendment is effective for annual and interim reporting

periods beginning after December 15 2011 and will be adopted by the Company for the quarter
ended March 31 2012

Upon adoption this amendment is not expected to have material effect on the financial statements

In December 2010 the FASB issued an amendment to the disclosure requirements for business combinations This

amendment specifies that if comparative financial statements are presented in connection with business combination

the entity should disclose revenue and earnings of the combined entity as though the business combination that occurred

during the current year
had occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only The

amendment also expands the disclosure requirement to include the nature and amount of material nonrecurring pro forma

adjustments directly attributable to the business combination The amendment is effective for business combinations

consummated on or before the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 2010

and early adoption is permitted This amendment will be adopted by the Company for the fiscal year ended September 30

2012 Upon adoption this amendment is not expected to have material effect on the financial statements
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ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The following discussion about the Companys market risk involves
forward-looking statements Actual results could differ

materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements The Company has market risk related to changes in

interest rates commodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates The Company does not generally use derivative

financial instruments in connection with these market risks except as noted below

Interest Rates The Companys most significant long-term debt instrument is the domestic Revolving Credit Facility which
bears interest at variable rates based on LIBOR

The Company has entered into the following interest rate swaps

Fixed Interest Rate

Interest Spread at

Effective Date Amount Rate September 30 2011 Maturity Date

September 2007 $25 million 4.77% .25% September 2012

May2008 20 million 3.72% 1.25% September2012
October2008 20 million 3.46% 1.25% October2011

May2011 25 million 1.37% 1.25% May2014
October2011 25million 1.67% 1.25% October2015
November 2011 25 million 2.13% 1.25% November2014
March 2012 25 million 2.44% 1.25% March 2015
September2012 25 million 3.03% 1.25% December2015
November2012 25 million 1.33% 1.25% November2015

The interest rate swaps have been designated as cash flow hedges of the future variable interest payments under the

Revolving Credit Facility which are considered probable of occurring Based on the Companys assessment all the critical

terms of each of the hedges matched the underlying terms of the hedged debt and related forecasted interest payments
and as such these hedges were considered highly effective

The fair value of the interest rate swaps reflected an unrealized loss of $7.2 million $4.4 million after tax at September 30
2011 that is included in equity as part of accumulated other comprehensive loss decrease of 10% in market interest rates

e.g decrease from 5.0% to 4.5% would result in an increase of approximately $789000 in the fair value liability of

the interest rate swaps

Commodity Price Risks In the normal course of business the Company is exposed to commodity price fluctuations

related to the purchases of certain materials and supplies such as bronze ingot steel fuel and wood used in its

manufacturing operations The Company obtains competitive prices for materials and supplies when available In addition

based on competitive market conditions and to the extent that the Company has established pricing terms with customers

through contracts or similar arrangements the Companys ability to immediately increase the price of its products to offset

the increased costs may be limited
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ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE 1ISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK continued

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates The Company is subject to changes in various foreign currency exchange rates

primarily including the Euro British Pound Canadian Dollar Australian Dollar Swedish Krona Chinese Yuan Hong Kong

Dollar Polish Zloty Turkish Lira and Vietnamese Dong in the conversion from local currencies to the U.S dollar of the

reported financial position and operating results of its non-U.S based subsidiaries An adverse change strengthening

dollar of 10% in exchange rates would have resulted in decrease in reported sales of $34.7 million and decrease in

reported operating income of $4.0 million for the year
ended September 30 2011

Actuarial Assumptions The most significant actuarial assumptions affecting pension expense and pension obligations

include the valuation of retirement plan assets the discount rate and the estimated return on plan assets The estimated

return on plan assets is currently based upon projections provided by the Companys independent investment advisor

considering the investment policy of the plan and the plans asset allocation The fair value of plan assets and discount

rate are point-in-time measures and the recent volatility of the debt and equity markets makes estimating future changes

in fair value of plan assets and discount rates more challenging The following table summarizes the impact on the

September 30 2011 actuarial valuations of changes in the primary assumptions affecting the Companys retirement plans

and supplemental retirement plan

Impact of Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

Change in Change in Expected Change in Market

Discount Rate Return Value of Assets

1% -1% 1% -1% 5% -5%

Doflar amounts in Thousands

Increase decrease in

net benefit cost 2259 2729 $91 $91 833 833

Increase decrease in projected

benefit obligation 20183 24973

Increase decrease in funded status 20183 24973 4711 4711
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MANAGEMENTS REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of

Matthews International Corporation

Managements Report on Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Matthews International Corporation and its subsidiaries collectively

the Company were prepared by management which is responsible for their integrity and objectivity The statements

were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and include amounts that are based on

managements best judgments and estimates The other financial information included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

is consistent with that in the financial statements

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Company

In order to evaluate the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting management has conducted an assessment

using the criteria in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO The Companys internal controls over financial reporting include those policies and procedures

that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the Company ii provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

Company and iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use

or disposition of the Companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements Because of its inherent

limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation

of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Based on its assessment management has concluded that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial

reporting as of September 30 2011 based on criteria in Internal Control Integrated
Framework issued by the COSO The

effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of September 30 2011 has been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLB an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report which is included herein

Managements Certifications

The certifications of the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

have been included as Exhibits 31 and 32 in the Companys Form 10-K
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of

Matthews International Corporation

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly in all material
respects

the financial position of Matthews International Corporation and its subsidiaries at September 30 2011 and 2010 and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three

years in the period ended September 30 2011 in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America In addition in our opinion the

financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index presents fairly in all material respects the information set

forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements Also in our opinion the Company
maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of September 30 2011 based on
criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management is responsible for these financial statements and financial

statement schedule for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial

Reporting appearing under Item Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements on the financial

statement schedule and on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits We
conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained

in all material respects Our audits of the financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over

financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that

material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial
reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures

that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of

the company and iH provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use
or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Pittsburgh Pennsylvania

November 22 2011
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MATTHEWS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30 2011 and 2010

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

ASSETS
2011 2010

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
60271 59715

Short-term investments
1391 1395

Accounts receivable net of allowance for doubtful

accounts of $10736 and $11261 respectively
164738 151038

Inventories
125567 107926

Deferred income taxes
1722 1666

Othercurrentassets
16157 13915

Total current assets
369846 335655

Investments
15105 13642

Property plant and equipment net 134504 129750

Deferred income taxes
33818 30555

Otherassets 16354 21101

Goodwill 465003 405180

Other intangible assets net 62825 57942

Total assets
$1097455 $993825

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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MATTHEWS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS continued

September 30 2011 and 2010

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Long-term debt current maturities

Trade accounts payable

Accrued compensation

Accrued income taxes

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Accrued pension

Postretirement benefits

Deferred income taxes

Environmental reserve

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Arrangement with noncontrolling interest

Shareholders equity Matthews

Class common stock $1.00 par value authorized

70000000 shares 36333992 shares issued

Preferred stock $100 par value authorized 10000 shares none issued

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Treasury stock 7884190 and 6855669 shares respectively at cost

Total shareholders equity Matthews

Noncontrolling interests

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

2011 2010

18014 12073

46655 36308

31339 39062

10272 12984

55461 47686

161741 148113

299170 225256

66714 50276

26417 23307

17007 15950

5406 5961

42745 31234

619200 500097

10162

36334 36334

48554 48294

681658 621923

58658 37136
243246 207470

464642 461945

3451 31783

468093 493728

$1097455 $993825

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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MATTHEWS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

for the years ended September 30 2011 2010 and 2009

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

2011

$898821

547161

351660

99251
133893

118516

1443

8241
298

112016

38556

73460

1088

72372

Earnings per share attributable to Matthews shareholders

Basic

Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling expense

Administrative expense

Operating profit

Investment income

Interest expense

Other income deductions net

Income before income taxes

Income taxes

2010 2009

$821829 $780908

498442 486131

323387 294777

91215 83576

115591 110190

116581 101011

2536 2048

7419 12053

1285 12

110413 90994

38639 31313

71774 59681

2717 1949

69057 57732

Net income

Less net income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net income attributable to Matthews shareholders

$2.47 $2.32 $1.91

$2.46 $2.31 $1.90
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MATTHEWS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
for the years ended September 30 2011 2010 and 2009

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

Accumulated

Balance September 30 2008

Net income

Minimum pension liability

Translation adjustment

Fair value of derivatives

Total comprehensive income

Stock-based compensation

Purchase of 796916 shares

treasury stock

Issuance of 241016 shares

treasury stock

Dividends $.265 per share

Distribution to noncontrolling interests

Arrangement-noncontrolling interest

Balance September 30 2009

Net income

Minimum pension liability

Translation adjustment

Fair value of derivatives

Total comprehensive income

Stock-based compensation

Purchase of 1070173 shares

treasury stock

Issuance of 246178 shares

treasury stock

Dividends $29 per share

Distribution to noncontrolling interests

Arrangement-noncontrolling interest

Balance September 30 2010

Net income

Minimum pension liability

Translation adjustment

Fair value of derivatives

Total comprehensive income

Stock-based compensation

Purchase of 1319375 shares

treasury stock

Issuance of 290854 shares

treasury stock

Dividends $33 per share

Distribution to noncontrolling interests

Arrangement-noncontrollirig interest

Additional

Common Paid-in

Stock Capital

$36334 $47250

29884

3929

11952
771

37136

11255
8607
1660

1503

8199
2291

175

438894

71774

3929

11051
771

65423

6567

1580

8688
234

25491

493728

73460

11255
8084
1660

52461

6972

2079

9632

6220
26728

Other

Comprehensive

Retained Income Loss

Earnings net of tax

Non-

Treasury controlling

Stock Interests Total

$511130 2979 $157780 4963 $438918
57732 1949 59681

702 28430 29132
4189 55 4244

2664 2664
32129

5822 5822

28813 28813

5636
8199

175

7139

2291

36334 47436

6567

5709

179454 4676

2717

901

559786

69057

8688

1768

35305

7289

35305

234
23723

36334 48294

6972

6712

207470 31783

1088

523

621923

72372

9632

3005

Balance September 30 2011

44567

8791

44567

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

6220
23723

$36334 $48554 $681658 $58658 $243246 3451 $468093
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MATTHEWS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

for the years ended September 30 2011 2010 and 2009

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

2010 2009

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Stock-based compensation expense

Increase in deferred taxes

Gain on sale of investments

Gain loss on sale of assets

Changes in working capital items

Decrease increase in other assets

Decrease in other liabilities

Increase decrease in pension and postretirement

benefit obligations

Net cash provided by operating activities
_________________________________________________

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditures

Acquisitions net of cash acquired

Proceeds from dispositions of assets

Purchases of investment securities

Proceeds from dispositions of investments
_________________________________________________

Net cash used in investing activities
_________________________________________________

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from long-term debt

Payments on long-term debt

Purchases of treasury stock

Proceeds from the sale of treasury stock

Tax benefit on exercised stock options

Dividends

Distributions to noncontrolling interests
_________________________________________________

Net cash provided by used in financing activities
_________________________________________________

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
_________________________________________________

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year _______________________________________________

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year _______________________________________________

Cash paid during the year for

Interest

Income taxes

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

2011

73460 71774 $59681

27661 27322 30292

6972 6567 5822

9481 4299 7506

50 715 466

2782 171 190

23093 65 1831

4787 3176 2245

2007 1415 488

1135 1725 7603

95564 106487 90858

22440 21437 19410

84369 32323 10953

1463 196 295

1639 1616 2620

173 926

106812 54254 32688

117107 58465 54128

48214 67307 69791

44567 35305 28762

1859 1502 1206

70 78 111

9632 8688 8199

6220 234 2291

10403 51489 53598

1401 1239 2493

556 1983 7065

59715 57732 50667

60271 59715 $57732

8367

35359

7605

35291

$12550

26032
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MATTHEWS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Matthews International Corporation Matthews or the Company founded in 1850 and incorporated in Pennsylvania
in 1902 is designer manufacturer and marketer principally of memorialization products and brand solutions

Memorialization products consist primarily of bronze and granite memorials and other memorialization products caskets
and cremation equipment for the cemetery and funeral home industries Brand solutions include graphics imaging products
and services marking products and merchandising solutions The Companys products and operations are comprised of six

business segments Bronze Casket Cremation Graphics Imaging Marking Products and Merchandising Solutions The
Bronze segment is leading manufacturer of cast bronze and granite memorials and other memorialization products cast
and etched architectural products and is leading builder of mausoleums in the United States The Casket segment is

leading casket manufacturer and distributor in North America and produces wide variety of wood and metal caskets The
Cremation segment is leading designer and manufacturer of cremation equipment in North America and Europe and
cremation caskets primarily in North America Effective October 2011 the cremation casket manufacturing operation will

be included in the Casket segment The Graphics Imaging segment manufactures and provides brand management printing
plates gravure cylinders pre-press services and imaging services for the primary packaging and corrugated industries The

Marking Products segment designs manufactures and distributes wide range of marking and coding equipment and

consumables and industrial automation products for identifying tracking and conveying various consumer and industrial

products components and packaging containers The Merchandising Solutions segment designs and manufactures

merchandising displays and systems and provides creative merchandising and marketing solutions services

The Company has manufacturing distribution and marketing facilities in the United States Mexico Canada Europe
Australia and Asia

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include all domestic and foreign subsidiaries in which the Company maintains an

ownership interest and has
operating control All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates

Foreign Currency

The functional currency of the Companys foreign subsidiaries is the local currency Balance sheet accounts for foreign

subsidiaries are translated into U.S dollars at exchange rates in effect at the consolidated balance sheet date Gains or losses

that result from this process are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income loss The revenue and expense
accounts of foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S dollars at the average exchange rates that prevailed during the

period Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions are recorded in other income deductions net
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes
of the consolidated statements of cash flows the Company considers all investments purchased

with remaining

maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair

value due to the short-term maturities of these instruments

Trade Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Trade receivables are carried at their estimated collectible amounts Trade credit is generally extended on short-term basis

thus trade receivables do not bear interest although finance charge may be applied to such receivables that are more than

30 days past due The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on an evaluation of specific customer accounts for which

available facts and circumstances indicate collectibility may be uncertain In addition the allowance includes reserve for

all customers based on historical collection experience

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market with cost generally
determined under the average cost method

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment are carried at cost Depreciation is computed primarily on the straight-line
method over the

estimated useful lives of the assets which generally range from 10 to 45
years

for buildings and to 12 years
for machinery

and equipment Gains or losses from the disposition of assets are reflected in operating profit The cost of maintenance

and repairs is charged against income as incurred Renewals and betterments of nature considered to extend the useful

lives of the assets are capitalized Property plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes

in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable Recoverability of assets is

determined by evaluating the estimated undiscounted net cash flows of the operations to which the assets relate An

impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value which is based on

discounted cash flow analysis

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized but are subject to annual review for impairment Other

intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives ranging from to 20 years In general when the carrying

value of reporting
unit exceeds its implied fair value an impairment loss must be recognized For purposes of testing for

impairment the Company uses combination of valuation techniques including discounted cash flows significant decline

in cash flows generated from these assets may result in write-down of the carrying values of the related assets

Environmental

Costs that mitigate or prevent future environmental issues or extend the life or improve equipment utilized in current

operations are capitalized and depreciated on straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets Costs

that relate to current operations or an existing condition caused by past operations are expensed Environmental liabilities

are recorded when the Companys obligation is probable and reasonably estimable Accruals for losses from environmental

remediation obligations do not consider the effects of inflation and anticipated expenditures are not discounted to their

present
value
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Treasury Stock

Treasury stock is carried at cost The cost of treasury shares sold is determined under the average cost method

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are provided for the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and
liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the years in which the differences are expected to reverse Valuation allowances

are recorded to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that tax benefit will not be realized Deferred

income taxes for U.S tax purposes have not been provided on certain undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries as such

earnings are considered to be reinvested indefinitely To the extent earnings are expected to be returned in the foreseeable

future the associated deferred tax liabilities are provided

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are generally recognized when title and risk of loss pass to the custome which is typically at the time of product

shipment For pre-need sales of memorials and vases revenue is recognized when the memorial has been manufactured
to the customers specifications e.g name and birth date title has been transferred to the customer and the memorial
and vase are placed in storage for future delivery liability

has been recorded for the estimated costs of finishing pre-need
bronze memorials and vases that have been manufactured and placed in storage prior to July 2003 for future delivery

Beginning July 2003 revenue is deferred by the Company on the portion of pre-need sales attributable to the final finishing

and storage of the pre-need merchandise Deferred revenue for final finishing is recognized at the time the pre-need
merchandise is finished and shipped to the customer Deferred revenue related to storage is recognized on straight-line

basis over the estimated average time that pre-need merchandise is held in storage

At September 30 2011 the Company held 333174 memorials and 236460 vases in its storage facilities under the pre
need sales program

Construction revenues are recognized under the percentage-of-completion method of accounting using the cost-to-cost

method

The Company offers rebates to certain customers participating in volume purchase programs Rebates are estimated and

recorded as reduction in sales at the time the Companys products are sold

Share-Based Payment

Stock-based compensation cost is measured at grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense
over the employee requisite service period

Derivatives and Hedging

Derivatives are held as part of formal documented hedging program All derivatives are straight forward and held for

purposes other than trading Matthews measures effectiveness by formally assessing at least quarterly the historical and

probable future high correlation of changes in the fair value or future cash flows of the hedged item If the hedging
relationship ceases to be highly effective or it becomes probable that an expected transaction will no longer occur gains
and losses on the derivative will be recorded in other income deductions at that time

Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive income loss
net of tax and are reclassified to earnings in manner consistent with the underlying hedged item The cash flows from

derivative activities are recognized in the statement of cash flows in manner consistent with the underlying hedged item
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred and were approximately $1705 $1910 and $2200 for the years

ended September 30 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per
share is computed by dividing net income by the average number of common shares outstanding

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the treasury stock method which assumes the issuance of common stock

for all dilutive securities

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date It establishes three level fair value hierarchy to prioritize the inputs

used in valuations as defined below

Level Observable inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active

markets

Level Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level that are observable for the asset or

liability either directly or indirectly

Level Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

As of September 30 2011 the fair values of the Companys assets and liabilities measured on recurring basis are

categorized as follows

Assets

Short term investments

Trading securities

Total assets at fair value

Liabilities

Derivatives1

Total liabilities at fair value

1lnterest rate swaps are valued based on observable market swap rates and are classified within Level of the fair value hierarchy

Level Level Level Total

1391 1391

13426 13426

$14817 $14817

$7161 7161

$7161 7161
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

INVENTORIES

Inventories at September 30 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following

Raw materials

Work in process

Finished goods

Investment securities are recorded at estimated market value at the consolidated balance sheet date and are classified as

trading securities Short-term investments consisted principally of corporate obligations with purchased maturities of over

three months but less than one year The cost of short-term investments approximated market value at September 30 2011

and 2010 Accrued interest on these investment securities was classified with short-term investments Investments classified

as non-current and trading securities consisted of equity and fixed income mutual funds

At September 30 2011 and 2010 non-current investments were as follows

Trading securities

Mutual funds

Equity and other investments

Non-current investments classified as trading securities are recorded at market value At September 30 2011 and 2010

cost exceeded market value by approximately $264 and $685 respectively

Realized gains and losses are based on the specific identification method and are recorded in investment income Realized

gains losses for fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 were not material

Equity investments primarily included ownership interests in various entities of less than 20% which are recorded under the

cost method of accounting

2011 2010

INVESTMENTS

35692 28266

21461 14159

68414 65501

$125567 $107926

2011 2010

$13426 $11770

1679 1872

$15105 $13642
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property plant and equipment and the related accumulated depreciation at September 30 2011 and 2010 were as follows

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Land

Construction in progress

Revolving credit facilities

Notes payable to banks

Short-term borrowings

Capital lease obligations

Less current maturities

In December 2010 the Company entered into new domestic Revolving Credit Facility with syndicate of financial

institutions The maximum amount of borrowings available under the new facility is $300000 and borrowings under the

facility bear interest at LIBOR plus factor ranging from .00% to .50% based on the Companys leverage ratio The

facilitys maturity is December 201 The new facility replaced the Companys $225000 Revolving Credit Facility The

leverage ratio is defined as net indebtedness divided by EBITDA earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization

The Company is required to pay an annual commitment fee ranging from .20% to .30% based on the Companys leverage

ratio of the unused portion of the facility

The Revolving Credit Facility requires the Company to maintain certain leverage and interest coverage ratios portion of

the facility not to exceed $25000 is available for the issuance of trade and standby letters of credit Outstanding borrowings

on the Revolving Credit Facility at September 30 2011 and 2010 were $250000 and $187000 respectively The weighted-

average interest rate on outstanding borrowings at September 30 2011 and 2010 was 2.59% and 2.69% respectively

2011 2010

LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt at September 30 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following

65010 64002

241147 221014

306157 285016

196391 178880

109766 106136

9114 8322

5624 5292

$134504 $129750

2011 2010

$281593 $203361

31193 27359

661 2829

3737 3780

317184 237329

18014 12073

$299170 $225256
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

LONG-TERM DEBT continued

The Company has entered into the following interest rate swaps

The Company enters into interest rate swaps in order to achieve mix of fixed and variable rate debt that it deems

appropriate The interest rate swaps have been designated as cash flow hedges of the future variable interest payments

under the Revolving Credit Facility which are considered probable of occurring Based on the Companys assessment all of

the critical terms of each of the hedges matched the underlying terms of the hedged debt and related forecasted interest

payments and as such these hedges were considered highly effective

The fair value of the interest rate swaps reflected an unrealized loss of $7161 $4368 after tax at September 30 2011

that is included in shareholders equity as part of accumulated other comprehensive loss AOCL Assuming market rates

remain constant with the rates at September 30 2011 approximately $1257 of the $4368 loss included in AOCL is expected

to be recognized in earnings as an adjustment to interest expense over the next twelve months

At September 30 2011 and 2010 the interest rate swap contracts were reflected as liability on the balance sheets The

following derivatives are designated as hedging instruments

Liability Derivatives

Balance Sheet Location

Current liabilities

Other current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Other liabilities

Total derivatives

Effective Date

Fixed Interest Rate

Interest Spread at

Amount Rate September 30 2011 Maturity Date

September 2007 $25000 4.77% .25% September 2012

May2008 20000 3.72% 1.25% September2012

October 2008 20000 3.46% .25% October 201

May2011 25000 1.37% 1.25% May2014
October 201 25000 1.67% 1.25% October 2015

November2011 25000 2.13% 1.25% November2014

March 2012 25000 2.44% 1.25% March 2015

September 2012 25000 3.03% .25% December 201

November 2012 25000 1.33% 1.25% November 2015

2011 2010

$2061 $2623

5100 1822

$7161 $4445
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

LONG-TERM DEBT continued

The income recognized on derivatives was as follows

Amount of

Loss

Location of
Recognized in Income

Derivatives in Gain or Loss
on Derivatives

Cash Flow Hedging Recognized in

Relationships Income on Derivatives 2011 2010

Interest rate swaps Interest expense $2600 $3669

The Company recognized the following gains or losses in AOCL
Amount of Gain

or Loss
Location of Gain

Reclassified from

or Loss
Amount of Loss AOCL

Derivatives in Reclassified from

Recognized in into Income

Cash Flow AOCL
AOCL on Derivatives Effective Portion

Hedging into Income

Relationships 2011 2010 Effective Portion 2011 2010

Interest rate swaps $3246 $1 467 Interest expense $1 586 $2238

There is no ineffective portion or amount excluded from effectiveness testing

The Company through certain of its German subsidiaries has credit facility with European bank The maximum amount

of borrowings available under this facility is 25.0 million Euros $33468 Outstanding borrowings under the credit facility

totaled 23.6 million Euros $31593 and 12.0 million Euros $16400 at September 30 2011 and 2010 respectively The

weighted-average interest rate on outstanding borrowings under the facility at September 30 2011 and 2010 was 2.38%

and .58% respectively The facilitys maturity is September 2012 The Company has the ability and intent to renew this

borrowing upon maturity

The Company through its German subsidiary Saueressig GmbH Co KG Saueressig has several loans with various

European banks Outstanding borrowings on these loans totaled 8.3 million Euros $1 11 59 and 7.9 million Euros $10816

at September 30 2011 and 2010 respectively The weighted-average interest rate on outstanding borrowings of Saueressig

at September 30 2011 and 2010 was 6.05% and 6.18% respectively

The Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary Matthews International S.p.A has several loans with various Italian

banks Outstanding borrowings on these loans totaled 8.7 million Euros $11611 and 12.1 million Euros $16543 at

September 30 2011 and 2010 respectively Matthews International S.p.A also has three lines of credit totaling 11 .4 million

Euros $15221 with the same Italian banks Outstanding borrowings on these lines were 493000 Euros $661 and 2.1

million Euros $2834 at September 30 2011 and 2010 respectively The weighted-average interest rate on outstanding

Matthews International SpA borrowings at September 30 2011 and 2010 was 3.11% and 3.47% respectively

The Company through its Turkish subsidiary Kroma Pre-Press Preparation Systems Industry Trade Inc Kroma acquired

in july 2011 has several loans with various Turkish banks Outstanding borrowings on these loans totaled 13.3 million

Turkish Lira $7184 at September 30 2011 The weighted-average interest rate on outstanding borrowings of Kroma was

9.27% at September 30 2011
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

LONG-TERM DEBT continued

As of September 30 2011 and 2010 the fair value of the Companys long-term debt including current maturities

approximated carrying value

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt including short-term borrowings and capital leases follows

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

The authorized common stock of the Company consists of 70000000 shares of Class Common Stock $1 par value

The Company has stock repurchase program Under the current authorization the Companys Board of Directors has

authorized the repurchase of total of 2500000 shares of Matthews common stock under the program of which 2169470
shares had been repurchased as of September 30 2011 The buy-back program is designed to increase shareholder value

enlarge the Companys holdings of its common stock and add to earnings per share Repurchased shares may be retained

in treasury utilized for acquisitions or reissued to employees or other purchasers subject to the restrictions of the Companys
Restated Articles of Incorporation

Comprehensive income consists of net income adjusted for changes net of any related income tax effect in cumulative foreign

currency translation the fair value of derivatives unrealized investment gains and losses and minimum pension liability

Accumulated other comprehensive loss at September 30 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following

Cumulative foreign currency translation

Fair value of derivatives net of tax of $2793 and $1734 respectively

Minimum pension liability net of tax of $35650 and $28454 respectively

2012 18014

2013 7271

2014

2015

2016

9000

282245

562

Thereafter 92

$317184

2011 2010

1830 10440

4368 2711
56120 44865

$58658 $37 136
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company maintains an equity incentive plan the 2007 Equity Incentive Plan that provides for the grants of stock

options restricted shares stock-based performance units and certain other types of stock-based awards Under the 2007

Equity Incentive Plan which has ten-year term the maximum number of shares available for grants or awards is an aggregate

of 2200000 The Company also maintains stock incentive plan the 1992 Incentive Stock Plan that previously provided

for grants of stock options restricted shares and certain other types of stock-based awards There will be no further grants

under the 1992 Incentive Stock Plan At September 30 2011 there were 1122072 shares reserved for future issuance under

the 2007 Equity Incentive Plan Both plans are administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

The option price for each stock option granted under either plan may not be less than the fair market value of the Companys

common stock on the date of grant Outstanding stock options are generally
exercisable in one-third increments upon the

attainment of pre-defined levels of appreciation in the market value of the Companys Class Common Stock In addition

options generally vest in one-third increments after three four and five years respectively from the grant date but in any

event not until the attainment of the market value thresholds The options expire on the earlier of ten years from the date

of grant upon employment termination or within specified time limits following voluntary employment termination wtth

the consent of the Company retirement or death The Company generally settles employee stock option exercises with

treasury shares With respect to outstanding restricted share grants generally one-half of the shares vest on the third

anniversary of the grant The remaining one-half of the shares vest in one-third increments upon attainment of pre-defined

levels of appreciation in the market value of the Companys Class Common Stock Additionally restricted shares cannot

vest until the first anniversary of the grant date Unvested restricted shares generally expire on the earlier of five years from

the date of grant upon employment termination or within specified time limits following voluntary employment termination

with the consent of the Company retirement or death The Company issues restricted shares from treasury shares

For the years ended September 30 2011 2010 and 2009 stock-based compensation cost totaled $6972 $6567 and

$5822 respectively The associated future income tax benefit recognized was $2719 $2561 and $2270 for the years

ended September 30 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

The amount of cash received from the exercise of stock options was $1859 $1502 and $1206 for the years ended

September 30 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively In connection with these exercises the tax benefits realized by the

Company were $278 $264 and $260 for the years ended September 30 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

The transactions for restricted stock for the year ended September 30 2011 were as follows

Weighted-average

grant-date

Shares fair value

Non-vested at September 30 2010 437442 $36.06

Granted 199960 30.79

Vested 92526 39.02

Expired or forfeited 3263 34.02

Non-vested at September 30 2011 541613 33.62

As of September 30 2011 the total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested restricted stock was $3600 which

is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of .6 years
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

The transactions for shares under options for the year ended September 30 2011 were as follows

Weighted-average Aggregate

Weighted-average remaining intrinsic

Shares exercise price contractual term value

Outstanding September 30 2010 953326 $36.32

Granted

Exercised 62865 26.27

Expired or forfeited 17947 37.44

Outstanding September 30 2011 872514 37.02 4.0

Exercisable September 30 2011 504928 35.75 3.7

No shares were earned during the
year ended September 30 2011 The fair value of option shares earned was $3120 and

$2722 during the years ended September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively The intrinsic value of options which is the

amount by which the stock price exceeded the exercise price of the options on the date of exercise exercised during the

years ended September 30 2011 2010 and 2009 was $743 $747 and $753 respectively

The transactions for non-vested option shares for the year ended September 30 2011 were as follows

Weighted-average

Shares grant-date fair value

Non-vested at September 30 2010 377548 $11.38

Granted

Vested

Expired or forfeited 9962 11 .25

Non-vested at September 30 2011 367586 11 .38

As of September 30 2011 the total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock options was approximately

$31 This cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of 0.2 years in accordance with the vesting

periods of the options

The fair value of each restricted stock grant is estimated on the date of grant using binomial lattice valuation model The

following table indicates the assumptions used in estimating fair value of restricted stock for the years ended September 30
20112010 and 2009

2011 2010 2009

Expected volatility 30.0% 30.0% 27.0%
Dividend yield 1.0% .8% .6%

Average risk-free interest rate .2% 2.3% 2.4%

Average expected term years 2.0 2.2 2.3
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

The risk-free interest rate is based on United States Treasury yields at the date of grant The dividend yield is based on the

most recent dividend payment and average stock price over the months prior to the grant
date Expected volatilities are

based on the historical volatility of the Companys stock price The expected term for grants in the years ended September

30 2011 2010 and 2009 represents an estimate of the average period of time for restricted shares to vest Separate

employee groups and award characteristics are considered separately for valuation purposes

Under the Companys Director Fee Plan directors except for the Chairman of the Board who are not also officers of the

Company each receive as an annual retainer fee either cash or shares of the Companys Class Common Stock equivalent

to $60 The equivalent amount paid to non-employee Chairman of the Board is $130 Where the annual retainer fee is

provided in shares each director may elect to be paid these shares on current basis or have such shares credited to deferred

stock account as phantom stock with such shares to be paid to the director subsequent to leaving the Board The value of

deferred shares is recorded in other liabilities total of 14794 shares had been deferred under the Director Fee Plan at

September 30 2011 Additionally directors who are not also officers of the Company each receive an annual stock-based

grant non-statutory stock options stock appreciation rights and/or restricted shares with value of $80 total of 22300

stock options have been granted under the plan At September 30 2011 11800 options were outstanding and vested

Additionally 64923 shares of restricted stock have been granted under the plan 23623 of which were unvested at September

30 2011 total of 300000 shares have been authorized to be issued under the Director Fee Plan

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The information used to compute earnings per share attributable to Matthews common shareholders was as follows

2011 2010 2009

Net income attributable to Matthews shareholders

Less dividends and undistributed earnings

allocated to participating securities

Net income available to Matthews shareholders

Weighted-average shares outstanding in thousands

Basic shares

Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options

Phantom stock units

Diluted shares

$72372 $69057 $57732

1420 1016 522

$70952 $68041 $57210

28775 29656 30245

17 25 37

20 25 36

28812 29706 30318

Options to purchase 289502 802189 and 764650 shares of common stock were not included in the computation of

diluted earnings per share for the years ended September 30 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively because the inclusion of

these options would be anti-dilutive
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11 PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT PLANS

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation beginning of year

Service cost

Interest cost

Assumption changes

Actuarial gain

Benefit payments

Benefit obligation end of year

Change in plan assets

Fair value beginning of year

Actual return

Benefit payments

Employer contributions

Fair value end of year

Funded status

Unrecognized actuarial loss

Unrecognized prior service cost

Net amount recognized

Amounts recognized in the

consolidated balance sheet

Current
liability

Noncurrent benefit
liability

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Net amount recognized

Amounts recognized in accumulated

other comprehensive loss

Net actuarial loss

Prior service cost

Net amount recognized

The Company provides defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans to certain employees The following provides

reconciliation of benefit obligations plan assets and funded status of the plans as of the Companys actuarial valuation

as of September 30 2011

Pension Other Postretirement

2011 2010 2011 2010

$145909 $138935 24400 25650
5016 4489 632 691

7510 7495 1254 1383

16501 2034 2285 683

887 1677 226 3214
6016 5367 798 793

168033 145909 27547 24400

94869 84428

1300 6036

6016 5367 798 793
10401 9772 798 793

100554 94869

67480 51040 27547 24400
85868 68793 8462 6810

525 227 1607 2083

7863 7980 $20692 $1 9673

766 765 1130 1093
66714 50275 26417 23307
85343 69020 6855 4727

7863 7980 $20692 $1 9673

85868 68793 8462 6810
525 227 1607 2083

85343 69020 6855 4727
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11 PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT PLANS continued

Based upon actuarial valuations performed as of September 30 2011 and 2010 the accumulated benefit obligation for

the Companys defined benefit pension plans was $149846 and $130342 at September 30 2011 and 2010 respectively

and the projected benefit obligation for the Companys defined benefit pension plans was $168033 and $145909 at

September 30 2011 and 2010 respectively

Net periodic pension and other postretirement
benefit cost for the plans included the following

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Amortization

Prior service cost

Net actuarial loss

Net benefit cost

Pension Other Postretirement

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

5016 4489 $3366 632 691 572

7510 7495 7496 1254 1383 1542

7398 6982 7593

26 24 28 476 726 1297

5364 5395 1759 407 521 294

$10518 $10421 $5056 $1817 $1869 $1111

Benefit payments under the Companys principal retirement plan are made from plan assets while benefit payments under

the supplemental retirement plan and postretirement benefit plan are made from the Companys operating cash Under

I.R.S regulations the Company was not required to make any significant contributions to its principal
retirement plan in

fiscal 2011 The Company is not required to make any significant contributions to its principal retirement plan in fiscal 2012

Contributions made in fiscal 2011 are as follows

Contributions Pension

Principal retirement plan $9000

Supplemental retirement plan

Other postretirement plan

Other

Postretirement

Benefits

535

Other

Postretirement

745

798

Amounts of AOCL expected to be recognized in net periodic benefit costs in fiscal 2012 include

Pension

Benefits

Net actuarial loss $6820

Prior service cost 45 451
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Discount rate 4.75% 5.25% 5.50% 4.75% 5.25% 5.50%
Return on plan assets 8.00 8.00 8.50

Compensation increase 3.50 3.50 4.25

The underlying basis of the investment strategy of the Companys defined benefit plans is to ensure the assets are invested

to achieve positive rate of return over the long term sufficient to meet the plans actuarial interest rate and provide for

the payment of benefit obligations and expenses in perpetuity in secure and prudent fashion maintain prudent risk level

that balances growth with the need to preserve capital diversify plan assets so as to minimize the risk of large losses or

excessive fluctuations in market value from year to yea achieve investment results over the long term that compare favorably

with other pension plans and appropriate indices The Companys investment policy as established by the Companys pension

board specifies the types of investments appropriate for the plans asset allocation guidelines criteria for the selection of

investment managers procedures to monitor overall investment performance as well as investment manager performance
It also provides guidelines enabling plan fiduciaries to fulfill their responsibilities

The Companys primary defined benefit pension plans weighted-average asset allocation at September 30 2011 and 2010

and weighted-average target allocation were as follows

Plan Assets at

Target

Asset Category

Equity securities

Fixed income cash and

cash equivalents

Other investments

2011 2010

50147 $49941

37032 32716

13375 12212

$100554 $94869

Plan assets in the fixed income cash and cash equivalents category include cash of 9% and 10% at September 30 2011 and

2010 respectively which reflects cash contributions to the Companys principal pension plan immediately prior to the end

of fiscal 2011 and 2010

Based on an analysis of the historical performance of the plans assets and information provided by its independent investment

advisor the Company set the long-term rate of return assumption for these assets at 8.0% in 2011 for purposes of

determining pension cost and funded status under current guidance The Companys discount rate assumption used in

determining the present value of the projected benefit obligation is based upon published indices

As of September 30 2010 the Company adopted new accounting guidance requiring additional disclosures for plan assets

of defined pension plans As required by the guidance the Company categorized plan assets within three level fair value

hierarchy see Note for further discussion of the fair value hierarchy The valuation methodologies used to measure the

fair value of pension assets including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which each type of pension plan asset is classified

as follows

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

11 PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT PLANS continued

The measurement date of annual actuarial valuations for the Companys principal retirement and other postretirement

benefit plans was September30 for fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 The weighted-average assumptions for those plans were

Pension Other Postretirement

Allocation

50%

30%

20%

100%
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11 PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT PLANS continued

Equity securities consist of direct investments in the stocks of publicly traded companies Such investments are valued based

on the closing price reported in an active market on which the individual securities are traded As such the direct investments

are classified as Level

Mutual funds are valued at the net asset values of shares held by the Plan at year end As such these mutual fund

investments are classified as Level

Fixed income securities consist of publicly traded fixed interest obligations primarily U.S government notes and corporate

and agency bonds Such investments are valued through consultation and evaluation with brokers in the institutional market

using quoted prices and other observable market data As such U.S government notes are included in Level and the

remainder of the fixed income securities is included in Level

Cash and cash equivalents consist of direct cash holdings and short-term money market mutual funds These values are

valued based on cost which approximates fair value and as such are classified as Level

Other investments consist primarily of real estate commodities private equity holdings and hedge fund investments These

holdings are valued by investment managers based on the most recent information available The valuation information

used by investment managers may not be readily observable As such these investments are classified as Level

Asset Category Level Level Level Total

Equity securities stocks $23954 23954

Equity securities mutual funds 26193 26193

Fixed income securities 7197 14421 21618

Cash and cash equivalents 15414 15414

Other investments 13375 13375

Total $72758 $14421 $13375 $100554

Changes in the fair value of Level assets are summarized as follows

Fair Value Fair Value

September 30 Realized Unrealized September 30

Asset Category 2010 Acquisitions Dispositions Losses Gains 2011

Other investments $12212 $90 $1073 $13375

Benefit payments expected to be paid are as follows

Other

Pension Postretirement

Years ending September 30 Benefits Benefits

2012 6042 1130

2013 6365 1240

2014 6762 1363

2015 7120 1454

2016 7599 1519

2017-2020 45547 9657

$79435 $16363
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11 PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT PLANS continued

For measurement purposes rate of increase of 9.0% in the per capita cost of health care benefits was assumed for 2012
the rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5.0% for 2030 and remain at that level thereafter Assumed health care cost

trend rates have significant effect on the amounts reported An increase in the assumed health care cost trend rates by one

percentage point would have increased the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of September 30 2011 by

$1384 and the aggregate of the service and interest cost components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the year

then ended by $114 decrease in the assumed health care cost trend rates by one percentage point would have decreased

the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of September 30 2011 by $1226 and the aggregate of the service and

interest cost components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the year then ended by $100

12 INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following

Current

Federal

State

Foreign

Deferred

Total

Deferred tax assets

Postretirement benefits

Environmental reserve

Pension costs

Deferred compensation

Stock options

Other

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation

Goodwill

Other

2011 2010 2009

$15306 $20898 $15896

3004 3191 1584

10689 9325 5963

28999 33414 23443

9557 5225 7870

$38556 $38639 $31313

2011 2010

$10743 9516

2430 2649

25524 19112

1037 5898

9447 7436

22790 16162

71971 60773

3503 1018
48494 41281
1441 2203

53438 44502

$18533 $16271Net deferred tax asset
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12 INCOME TAXES continued

The reconciliation of the federal statutory tax rate to the consolidated effective tax rate was as follows

Federal statutory tax rate

Effect of state income taxes net of federal deduction

Foreign taxes less than federal statutory rate

Other
____________________________________________

Effective tax rate
_______________________________________________

The Companys foreign subsidiaries had income before income taxes for the years ended September 30 2011 2010 and

2009 of approximately $36870 $36040 and $2481 respectively At September 30 2011 undistributed earnings of

foreign subsidiaries for which deferred U.S income taxes have not been provided approximated $176300

Changes in the total amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits excluding penalties and interest are as follows

Balance beginning of year

Increases for tax positions of prior years

Decreases for tax positions of prior years

Increases based on tax positions related to the current year

Decreases due to settlements with taxing authorities

Decreases due to lapse of statute of limitation

Balance end of year __________________________________________

The Company had unrecognized tax benefits of $2928 and $3422 at September 30 2011 and 2010 respectively all of

which if recorded would impact the annual effective tax rate It is reasonably possible that the amount of unrecognized tax

benefits could change by approximately $279 in the next 12 months primarily due to expiration of statutes related to specific

tax positions

The Company classifies interest and penalties on tax uncertainties as component of the provision for income taxes For

fiscal 2011 the Company included net decrease of $570 in interest and penalties as component of the provision for

income taxes Total penalties and interest accrued were $1842 and $2412 at September 30 2011 and 2010 respectively

These accruals may potentially be applicable in the event of an unfavorable outcome of uncertain tax positions

2011 2010 2009

35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

2.5 2.6 2.9

1.3 0.7 1.8

1.8 1.9 1.7

34.4% 35.0% 34.4%

2011 2010 2009

$3422 $3575 $4370

437 120

96 506 607

202 355 674

38 57 542

562 382 440

$2928 $3422 $3575
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12 INCOME TAXES continued

The Company is currently under examination in several tax jurisdictions and remains subject to examination until the statute

of limitation expires for those tax jurisdictions As of September 30 2011 the tax years that remain subject to examination

by major jurisdiction generally are

United States Federal 2008 and forward

United States State 2008 and forward

Canada 2007 and forward

Europe 2003 and forward

United Kingdom 2009 and forward

Australia 2007 and forward

Asia 2005 and forward

13 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company operates various production warehouse and office facilities and equipment under operating lease agreements
Annual rentals underthese and otheroperating leaseswere $16323 $15030 and $14881 in fiscal 20112010 and 2009
respectively Future minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable operating lease arrangements for fiscal years 2012

through 2016 are $7957 $5478 $3276 $1947 and $988 respectively

The Company is
party to various legal proceedings the eventual outcome of which are not predictable Although the

ultimate disposition of these proceedings is not presently determinable management is of the opinion that they should not

result in liabilities in an amount which would materially affect the Companys consolidated financial position results of

operations or cash flows

The Company has employment agreements with certain employees the terms of which expire at various dates between

fiscal 2012 and 2016 The agreements generally provide for base salary and bonus levels and include non-compete provisions

The aggregate commitment for salaries under these agreements at September 30 2011 was $16815

14 ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Companys operations are subject to various federal state and local laws and regulations relating to the protection of

the environment These laws and regulations impose limitations on the discharge of materials into the environment and

require the Company to obtain and operate in compliance with conditions of permits and other government authorizations

As such the Company has developed environmental health and safety policies and procedures that include the proper

handling storage and disposal of hazardous materials

The Company is party to various environmental matters These include obligations to investigate and mitigate the effects on

the environment of the disposal of certain materials at various operating and non-operating sites The Company is currently

performing environmental assessments and remediation at these sites as appropriate In addition prior to its acquisition

The York Group Inc York was identified along with others by the Environmental Protection Agency as potentially

responsible party for remediation of landfill site in York Pennsylvania At this time the Company has not been joined in

any lawsuit or administrative order related to the site or its clean-up
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14 ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS continued

At September 30 2011 an accrual of $6194 had been recorded for environmental remediation of which $788 was classified

in other current liabilities representing managements best estimate of the probable and reasonably estimable costs of the

Companys known remediation obligations
The accrual which reflects previously established reserves assumed with the

acquisition of York and additional reserves recorded as purchase accounting adjustment does not consider the effects of

inflation and anticipated expenditures are not discounted to their present value While final resolution of these contingencies

could result in costs different than current accruals management believes the ultimate outcome will not have significant

effect on the Companys consolidated results of operations or financial position

15 SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Changes in working capital items as presented in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows consisted of the following

Current assets

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Other current assets

Current liabilities

Trade accounts payable

Accrued compensation

Accrued income taxes

Customer prepayments

Other current liabilities

Net change
__________________________________________

16 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Companys products and operations consist of two principal businesses that are comprised of three operating segments

each as described under Nature of Operations Note Memorialization Products Bronze Casket Cremation and Brand

Solutions Graphics Imaging Marking Products Merchandising Solutions Management evaluates segment performance

based on operating profit before income taxes and does not allocate non-operating items such as investment income

interest expense other income deductions net and noncontrolling interests

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Note Intersegment sales are accounted for at negotiated prices Operating profit is total revenue less operating expenses

Segment assets include those assets that are used in the Companys operations within each segment Assets classified under

Other principally consist of cash and cash equivalents investments deferred income taxes and corporate headquarters

assets Long-lived assets include property plant and equipment net of accumulated depreciation goodwill and other

intangible assets net of accumulated amortization

2011 2010 2009

5560 7715 8828

13627 1613 4751

2265 1630 2940

21452 10958 10639

6210 3681 1444

8250 3188 4791

3167 4863 3602

2801 3942 974

765 4781 4547

1641 10893 12470

$23093 65 1831
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16 SEGMENT IN FORMATION continued

Information about the Companys segments follows

MEMORIALIZATION BRAND SOLUTIONS

Graphics Marking Merchandising

Bronze Casket Cremation Imaging Products Solutions Other Consolidated

Sales to external customers

2011 $224773 $238753 $43816 $268975 $61938 $60566 898821
2010 224247 210279 39356 239957 51069 56921 821829

2009 215934 203247 30909 234966 42355 53497 780908

Intersegment sales

2011 251 207 5616 177 21 90 6362
2010 272 218 4558 16 281 5346
2009 192 276 4182 64 30 34 4778

Depreciation and amortization

2011 2955 6335 280 13580 530 1949 2032 27661
2010 2442 6623 246 13234 526 1850 2401 27322
2009 4136 7081 251 14677 614 2088 1445 30292

Operating profit

2011 52474 26785 5733 22427 7819 3278 118516
2010 56167 26242 4910 21077 5817 2368 116581
2009 57598 17716 5036 19217 1500 56 101011

Total assets

2011 197127 310862 35997 351595 67193 60491 74190 1097455
2010 194110 290123 29316 319480 36740 54876 69180 993825

2009 182194 253012 22541 337407 39569 51492 63438 949653

Capital expenditures

2011 1618 3840 511 10820 295 3165 2191 22440
2010 6107 1117 253 8058 450 1028 4424 21437
2009 3017 2648 138 8011 251 492 4853 19410

Information about the Companys operations by geographic area follows

United States Mexico Canada Europe Australia Asia Consolidated

Sales to external customers

2011 $559362 $13086 $298773 $13437 $14163 $898821

2010 520083 14000 264833 11160 11753 821829

2009 498782 11995 251823 9647 8661 780908

Long-lived assets

2011 380059 5726 476 259860 6752 9459 662332

2010 334471 6367 484 235902 6957 8691 592872

2009 303342 5685 466 256271 3987 8529 578280
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17 ACQUISITIONS

Fiscal 2011

Acquisition spending net of cash acquired during the year ended September 30 2011 totaled $84369 The acquisitions

were not individually material to the Companys consolidated financial position or results of operations and primarily included

the following

In August 2011 the Company acquired Lightning Pick Technologies Inc LPT manufacturer that develops

installs and supports paperless order fulfillment solutions The transaction is intended to expand the Companys

presence and product breadth in the marking products industry

In July 2011 the Company entered into an agreement to acquire 70% interest in Kroma leading provider of

pre-press
services and roto-gravure printing cylinders in Turkey The acquisition is designed to further extend

Matthews presence as the leading provider of reprographic pre-press products and services to the European

packaging and tobacco markets The Company completed the purchase of 61.5% interest in July 2011 and

the additional 8.5% interest will be purchased in fiscal 2012 In addition the Company entered into an option

agreement related to the remaining 30% interest in Kroma

In April 2011 the Company completed the purchase of the remaining 22% interest in Saueressig for $19.3

million Euros $27390 completing the option agreement in connection with the May 2008 acquisition of

78% interest in Saueressig

In March 2011 the Company acquired Innovative Picking Technologies Inc IPTI manufacturer of paperless

order fulfillment systems The transaction is intended to expand the Companys presence
and product breadth

in the marking products industry

In October 2010 the Company acquired Freeman Metal Products Inc and its affiliated companies Freeman

manufacturer and distributor of caskets The purchase price for the acquisition was $22800 plus additional

consideration up to $6000 contingent on operating performance over the next three years The transaction is

intended to provide synergies in the manufacturing and distribution of caskets and expand the Companys market

presence in the Southeast and South Central regions of the United States

In October 2010 the Company acquired the remaining 25% interest in Rudolf Reproflex GmbH Co KG

Reproflex The Company acquired 75% interest in Reproflex in 2001

Fiscal 2010

Acquisition spending net of cash acquired during the year
ended September 30 2010 totaled $32323 The acquisitions

primarily included the following

In August 2010 the Company acquired Newmark of Colorado and its affiliated companies Newmark

distributor of primarily York brand caskets in the West region of the United States The transaction was designed

as an asset purchase and was intended to expand the Companys casket distribution capabilities in the western

United States
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17 ACQUISITIONS continued

In April 2010 the Company acquired Reynoldsville Casket Company Reynoldsville manufacturer and

distributor of caskets primarily in the Northeast region of the United States The acquisition was structured as an

asset purchase and was intended to expand the Companys casket distribution capabilities in the northeastern

United States

In March 2010 the Company acquired an 80% interest in Furnace Construction Cremators Limited FCC
manufacturer of cremation equipment located in the United Kingdom The acquisition was designed to expand

the Companys global presence in the European cremation markets

In February 2010 the Company acquired A.J Distribution Inc AJ Distribution distributor of primarily York

brand caskets in the Northwest region of the United States The transaction was structured as an asset purchase

and was intended to expand the Companys casket distribution capabilities in the northwestern United States

In December 2009 the Company acquired United Memorial Products Inc UMP primarily supplier of granite

memorial products and caskets in the West region of the United States The transaction was structured as an

asset purchase and was designed to extend Matthews presence in the broad granite market

Fiscal 2009

Acquisition spending net of cash acquired during the year ended September 30 2009 totaled $10953 The acquisitions

were not individually or in the aggregate material to the Companys consolidated financial position or results of operations

In July 2009 the Company acquired an 80% interest in Tact Group Limited small graphics business

headquartered in Hong Kong The acquisition was intended to expand the Companys graphics imaging

capabilities in Asia

In December 2008 the Company acquired an 80% interest in Gem Matthews International srI cremation

equipment manufacturer in Italy The acquisition was intended to expand Matthews cremation equipment

manufacturing capabilities in Europe

18 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill is not amortized but is subject to annual review for impairment In general when the carrying value of reporting

unit exceeds its implied fair value an impairment loss must be recognized For purposes of testing for impairment the

Company uses combination of valuation techniques including discounted cash flows Intangible assets are amortized over

their estimated useful lives unless such lives are considered to be indefinite significant decline in cash flows generated

from these assets may result in write-down of the carrying values of the related assets

The Company performed its annual impairment reviews in the second quarters of fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 and determined

that no adjustments to the carrying values of goodwill or other indefinite lived intangibles were necessary Changes to

goodwill net of accumulated amortization during the years ended September 30 2011 and 2010 follow
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18 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued

Goodwill

Accumulated impairment losses

Balance at September 30 2009

Additions during period

Translation and other adjustments

Goodwill

Accumulated impairment losses

Balance at September 30 2010

Additions during period

Translation and other adjustments

Goodwill

Accumulated impairment losses

Balance at September 30 2011

The following tables summarize the carrying amounts and

September 30 2011 and 2010 respectively

September 30 2011

Trade names

Trade names

Customer relationships

Copyrights/patents/other

September 30 2010

Trade names

Trade names

Customer relationships

Copyrights/patents/other

Graphics Marking Merchandising

Imaging Products SolutionsBronze Casket Cremation Consolidated

$79707 $122896 $13887 $158863 9980 $9138 $394471

412 5000 3840 9252

79295 122896 8887 155023 9980 9138 385219

10554 17657 2968 1403 129 29905

1648 56 8299 59 9944

88613 140553 16799 149161 10168 9138 414432

412 5000 3840 9252

88201 140553 11799 145321 10168 9138 405180

22266 22521 19227 64014

471 64 3854 198 4191

88142 162819 16735 167828 29593 9138 474255

412 5000 3840 9252

$87730 $162819 $11735 $163988 $29593 $9138 $465003

In 2011 the addition to Casket goodwill represents the acquisition of Freeman the addition to Graphics Imaging goodwill

represents the acquisition of Kroma and the remaining 25% interest in Reproflex and the addition to Marking Products

goodwill represents
the acquisitions of IPTI and LPT

In 2010 the addition to Bronze goodwill represents the acquisition of UMP the addition to Casket goodwill primarily represents

the acquisitions of Newmark A.J Distribution and Reynoldsville the addition to Cremation goodwill represents the acquisition

of FCC and the change in Graphics Imaging goodwill represents the effect of an adjustment to the purchase price for Saueressig

related accumulated amortization for intangible assets as of

Carrying
Amount

Accumulated

Amortization Net

$24266 $24266

2227 1147 1080

47876 13228 34648

9870 7039 2831

$84239 $21414 $62825

$24314 $24314

1689 780 909

40607 10674 29933

8984 6198 2786

$75594 $17652 $57942

Not subject to amortization
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18 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued

The net change in intangible assets during fiscal 2011 included an increase for the acquisitions of Freeman Kroma and LPT

offset by the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and additional amortization The change in intangible

assets during fiscal 2010 included an increase for the acquisitions of UMP A.J Distribution Reynoldsville and Newmark

offset by the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and additional amortization

Amortization expense on intangible assets was $4200 $3720 and $4310 in fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Fiscal year amortization expense is estimated to be $3904 in 2012 $3544 in 2013 $3320 in 2014 $3087 in 2015 and

$2778 in 2016

19 ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued an amendment to the guidance for goodwill

and other intangibles The amendment applies to the goodwill impairment test and permits an entity to first assess qualitative

factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount

as basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test The more likely than

not threshold is defined as likelihood of more than 50 percent The amendment is effective for annual and interim goodwill

impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 2011 Early adoption is permitted This amendment

will be adopted by the Company for the quarter ended March 31 2012 Upon adoption this amendment is not expected

to have material effect on the financial statements

In June 2011 the FASB issued an amendment to the guidance on the presentation of comprehensive income The

amendment requires that comprehensive income be presented either in single continuous statement of comprehensive

income or in two separate but consecutive statements In both choices an entity is required to present on the face of the

financial statements reclassification adjustments for items that are reclassified from other comprehensive income to net

income in the statement where the components of net income and other comprehensive income are presented This

amendment is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 2011 Early

adoption is permitted The Company is evaluating the impact of this amendment on its financial statements and the timing

of its adoption

In May 2011 the FASB issued an amendment to revise the wording used to describe many of the requirements for measuring

fair value and disclosing information about fair value measurements This amendment clarifies the FASBs intention about

the application of fair value In addition the amendment changes certain principles or requirements for measuring fair value

and disclosure of such measurements The amendment is effective for annual and interim reporting periods beginning after

December 15 2011 and will be adopted by the Company for the quarter ended March 31 2012 Upon adoption this

amendment is not expected to have material effect on the financial statements

In December 2010 the FASB issued an amendment to the disclosure requirements for business combinations This

amendment specifies that if comparative financial statements are presented in connection with business combination the

entity should disclose revenue and earnings of the combined entity as though the business combination that occurred during

the current year had occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only The amendment

also expands the disclosure requirement to include the nature and amount of material nonrecurring pro forma adjustments

directly attributable to the business combination The amendment is effective for business combinations consummated on

or before the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 2010 and early adoption

is permitted This amendment will be adopted by the Company for the fiscal
year ended September 30 2012 Upon

adoption this amendment is not expected to have material effect on the financial statements
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Selected Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

The following table sets forth certain items included in the Companys unaudited consolidated financial statements for

each quarter of fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010

Quarter Ended

Year Ended

December 31 March 31 June 30 September 30 September 30

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

FISCAL YEAR 2011

Sales $207344 $220151 $231511 $239815 $898821

Grossprofit 79745 88113 91944 91858 351660

Operating profit 21966 28485 35081 32984 118516

Net income attributable to

Matthews shareholders 13214 16587 21875 20696 72372

Earnings per share $45 $.56 $74 $71 $2.46

FISCAL YEAR 2010

Sales $192973 $200866 $213329 $214661 $821829

Gross profit 73390 77781 84969 87247 323387

Operating profit 22176 27118 34514 32773 116581

Net income attributable to

Matthews shareholders 12996 15931 20411 19719 69057

Earnings per share $43 $53 $.68 $.67 $2.31
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

SCHEDULE II VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions

Balance at Charged to

beginning of Charged to other Balance at

Description period expense accounts1 Deductions2 end of period

Dollar amounts in thousands

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Fiscal Year Ended

September 30 2011 $11261 533 $580 $1638 $10736

September 30 2010 12630 1602 737 3708 11261

September 30 2009 11538 4320 3228 12630

1Amount comprised principally of acquisitions and purchase accounting adjustments in connection with acquisitions

2Amounts determined not to be collectible including direct write-offs net of recoveries
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ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS

ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There have been no changes in accountants or disagreements on accounting or financial disclosure between the Company

and PricewaterhouseCoopers LL Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for the fiscal years ended September 30

20112010 and 2009

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Companys disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 3a-1 5e and 5d-1 5e under the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 as amended are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in the

Companys reports filed under that Act the Exchange Act such as this Annual Report on Form 10-K is recorded

processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission

These disclosure controls and procedures also are designed to provide reasonable assurance that such information is

accumulated and communicated to management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to allow

timely decisions regarding required disclosures

Management under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Off ice

evaluated the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures in effect as of September 30 2011 Based

on that evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that as of September 30 2011 the

Companys disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that material information

accumulated and communicated to management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Office and that

such information is recorded processed summarized and properly reported within the appropriate time period relating to

the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries required to be included in the Exchange Act reports including this Annual

Report on Form 10-K

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting is included in Managements Report to Shareholders in

Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Companys internal control over financial reporting as of September 30 2011 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LL

an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report which is included in Item of this Annual Report

on Form 10-K

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Companys internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth

fiscal quarter ended September 30 2011 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the

Companys internal controls over financial reporting
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS OFFICERS and EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT OF THE REGISTRANT

In addition to the information reported in Part of this Form 0-K under the caption Officers and Executive Management

of the Registrant the information required by this item as to the directors of the Company is hereby incorporated by

reference from the information appearing under the captions General Information Regarding Corporate Governance

Audit Committee Proposal No Elections of Directors and Compliance with Section 16a of the Exchange Act

in the Companys definitive
proxy statement which involves the election of the directors and is to be filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Exchange Act of 1934 as amended within 120 days of the end of the

Companys fiscal year ended September 30 2011

The Companys Code of Ethics Applicable to Executive Management is set forth in Exhibit 14.1 hereto

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item as to the compensation of directors and executive management of the Company is

hereby incorporated by reference from the information appearing under the captions Compensation of Directors and

Executive Compensation and Retirement Benefits in the Companys definitive proxy statement which involves the election

of directors and is to be filed with the Commission pursuant to the Exchange Act within 20 days of the end of the

Companys fiscal year ended September 30 2011 The information contained in the Compensation Committee Report

is specifically not incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this item as to the ownership by management and others of securities of the Company is

hereby incorporated by reference from the information appearing under the caption Stock Ownership in the Companys

definitive proxy statement which involves the election of directors and is to be filed with the Commission pursuant to the

Exchange Act within 120 days of the end of the Companys fiscal year ended September 30 2011

Equity Compensation Plans

The Company maintains an equity incentive plan the 2007 Equity Incentive Plan that provides for the grants of stock

options restricted shares stock-based performance units and certain other types of stock-based awards Under the 2007

Equity Incentive Plan which has ten-year term the maximum number of shares available for grants or awards is an

aggregate of 2200000 The Company also maintains stock incentive plan the 1992 Incentive Stock Plan that

previously provided for grants of stock options restricted shares and certain other types of stock-based awards There will

be no further grants under the 1992 Incentive Stock Plan At September 30 2011 there were 1122072 shares reserved

for future issuance under the 2007 Equity Incentive Plan Both plans are administered by the Compensation Committee

of the Board of Directors

The option price for each stock option granted under either plan may not be less than the fair market value of the Companys

common stock on the date of grant Outstanding stock options are generally exercisable in one-third increments upon the

attainment of pre-defined levels of appreciation in the market value of the Companys Class Common Stock In addition options

generally vest in one-third increments after three four and five years respectively from the grant date but in any event not until

the attainment of the market value thresholds The options expire on the earlier of ten years from the date of grant upon

employment termination or within specified time limits following voluntary employment termination with the consent of the

Company retirement or death The Company generally settles employee stock option exercises with treasury shares With respect
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ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT continued

to outstanding restricted share grants generally one-half of the shares vest on the third anniversary of the grant with the

remaining one-half of the shares vesting in one-third increments upon attainment of pre-defined levels of appreciation in

the market value of the Company Class Common Stock Additionally restricted shares cannot vest until the first

anniversary of the grant date Unvested restricted shares generally expire on the earlier of five years
from the date of grant

upon employment termination or within specified time limits following voluntary employment termination with the

consent of the Company retirement or death The Company issues restricted shares from treasury shares

Under the Companys Director Fee Plan directors except for the Chairman of the Board who are not also officers of the

Company each receive as an annual retainer fee either cash or shares of the Companys Class Common Stock equivalent

to $60000 The equivalent amount paid to non-employee Chairman of the Board is $130000 Where the annual retainer

fee is provided in shares each director may elect to be paid these shares on current basis or have such shares credited to

deferred stock account as phantom stock with such shares to be paid to the director subsequent to leaving the Board

The value of deferred shares is recorded in other liabilities total of 14794 shares had been deferred under the Director Fee

Plan at September 30 2011 Additionally directors who are not also officers of the Company each receive an annual stock-

based grant non-statutory stock options stock appreciation rights and/or restricted shares with value of $80000 total

of 22300 stock options have been granted under the plan At September 30 2011 11800 options were outstanding and

vested Additionally 64923 shares of restricted stock have been granted under the plan 23623 of which were unvested at

September 30 2011 total of 300000 shares have been authorized to be issued under the Director Fee Plan

The following table provides information about grants under the Companys equity compensation plans as of September 30 2011

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities

remaining available

for future issuance

Number of securities Weighted-average under equity

to be issued upon exercise price compensation plans

exercise of of outstanding excluding

outstanding options options warrants securities reflected

Plan category warrants and rights and rights in column

Equity compensation plans

approved by security holders

1992 Stock Incentive Plan 872514 $37.02

2007 Equity Incentive Plan 11220722

Employee Stock Purchase Plan 1650587

Director Fee Plan 26594 35.39 125688

Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders None None None

Total 899108 $37.00 2898347

As result of the approval of the 2007 Equity Incentive Plan no further grants or awards will be made under the 1992 incentive Stock Plan

The 2007 Equity Incentive Plan was approved in February 2008 The Plan provides for the grant or award of stock options restricted shares stock-based

performance units and certain other types of stock based awards with maximum of 2200000 shares available for grants or awards

3Shares under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan the Plan are purchased in the open market by employees at the fair market value of the Companys

stock The Company provides matching contribution of O% of such purchases subject to certain limitations under the Plan As the Plan is an open

market purchase plan it does not have dilutive effect

4Shares of restricted stock may be issued under the Director Fee Plan The maximum number of shares authorized to be issued under the Director Fee

Plan is 300000 shares
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ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this item as to certain relationships and transactions with management and other related

parties of the Company is hereby incorporated by reference from the information appearing under the captions Proposal

No Election of Directors and Certain Transactions in the Companys definitive proxy statement which involves the

election of directors and is to be filed with the Commission pursuant to the Exchange Act within 120 days of the end of

the Companys fiscal year ended September 30 2011

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item as to the fees billed and the services provided by the principal accounting firm of

the Company is hereby incorporated by reference from the information appearing under the caption Relationship with

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm in the Companys definitive proxy statement which involves the election

of directors and is to be filed with the Commission pursuant to the Exchange Act within 120 days of the end of the

Companys fiscal year ended September 30 2011
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

Financial Statements

The following items are included in Part II Item

Pages

Managements Report to Shareholders 35

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 36

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30 2011 and 2010 37-38

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended

September 30 2011 2010 and 2009 39

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the years
ended

September 30 2011 2010 and 2009 40

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended

September 30 2011 2010 and 2009 41

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 42-66

Supplementary Financial Information unaudited 67

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts is included on page 68 in Part II Item of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

Exhibits Filed

The index to exhibits is on pages 75-76

Reports on Form 8-K

On July 2011 Matthews filed current report on Form 8-KJA under Item announcing the Company will

include shareholder vote on the compensation of executives in its proxy materials every year

On July 21 2011 Matthews filed current report on Form 8-K under Item in connection with press release

announcing the election of Morgan OBrien and Jerry Whitaker to the Board of Directors

On July 22 2011 Matthews filed current report on Form 8-K under Item in connection with press release

announcing its earnings for the third fiscal quarter of 2011

73



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 5d of the Securities Exchange Act of 934 the Registrant has duly caused

this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized on November 22 2011

MATTHEWS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION

Registrant

By Is/ Joseph Bartolacci

Joseph Bartolacci

President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on November 22 2011

1st Joseph Bartolacci /st Steven Nicola

Joseph Bartolacci Steven Nicola

President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Secretary

Principal Executive Officer and Treasurer Principal Financial

and Accounting Officer

1st John Turner /sI Robert Neubert

John Turner Chairman of the Board Robert Neubert Director

1st Gregory Babe 1st Morgan OBrien

Gregory Babe Director Morgan OBrien Director

tst Katherine Dietze 1st John OLeary Jr

Katherine Dietze Director John OLeary Jr Director

isi Alvaro Garcia-Tunon Is Jerry Whitaker

Alvaro Garcia-Tunon Director Jerry Whitakeç Director
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MATTHEWS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

EXHIBITS

INDEX

The following Exhibits to this report are filed herewith or if marked with an asterisk are incorporated by reference

Exhibits marked with an represent management contract or compensatory plan contract or arrangement required

to be filed by Item 601 b1 0iii of Regulation S-K

Exhibit Prior Filing or Sequential

No Description Page Numbers Herein

3.1 Restated Articles of lncorporation Exhibit Number 3.1 to Form 10-K

for the year ended September 30 994

3.2 Restated Bylaws Exhibit Number 99.1 to Form 8-K

dated October 18 2007

4.1 Form of Revised Option Agreement of Repurchase Exhibit Number 4.5 to Form 10-K

effective October 993 for the year ended September 30 1993

4.2 Form of Share Certificate for Class Common Stock Exhibit Number 4.9 to Form 10-K

for the year ended September 30 1994

10.1 Revolving Credit Facility Exhibit Number 10.1 to Form 8-K

dated December 28 2010

10.2 Supplemental Retirement Plan as amended Exhibit Number 10.5a to Form 10-K

through April 23 2009 for the year
ended September 30 2010

10.3 Officers Retirement Restoration Plan Exhibit Number 10.6 to Form 10-K

effective April 23 2009 for the year ended September 30 2009

10.4 1992 Stock Incentive Plan as amended Exhibit Number 10.1 to Form 10-Q

through April 25 2006 for the quarter ended March 31 2006

10.5 Form of Stock Option Agreement Exhibit Number 10.7 to Form 10-K

for the year ended September 30 2008

10.6 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement Exhibit Number 10.8 to Form 10-K

for the year ended September 30 2008

10.7 1994 Director Fee Plan as amended through Exhibit Number 10.9 to Form 10-K

November 13 2008 for the year
ended September 30 2008

10.8 1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan Exhibit Number 10.2 to Form 10-Q

for the quarter ended March 31 1995
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EXHIBITS INDEX continued

Exhibit Prior Filing or Sequential

No Description Page Numbers Herein

10.9 2007 Equity Incentive Plan as amended Exhibit Number 10.11 to Form 10-K

through September 26 2008 for the year ended September 30 2008

10.10 2010 Incentive Compensation Plan Exhibit to 2011 Proxy Statement

10.11 Sale and Purchase Agreement by and among Exhibit Number 10.1 to Form 8-K

Mr Jorg Christian Saueressig Mr Karl dated May 12 2008

Wilhelm Saueressig Mr Jakob Heinrich

Saueressig Mr Reinhart Zech Von Hymen and

Matthews International Corporation

10.12 Sale and Purchase and Transfer Agreement Exhibit Number 10.14 to Form 10-K

Regarding the Sale and Purchase and Transfer for the year ended September 30 2010

of Partnership Interest in Saueressig GmbH

Co KG dated June 2010

10.13 Sale and Purchase and Transfer Agreement Exhibit Number 10.1 to Form 0-Q

Regarding the Sale and Purchase and Transfer for the quarter ended March 31 2011

of Partnership Interest in Saueressig GmbH

Co KG dated March 29 2011

14.1 Form of Code of Ethics Applicable to Exhibit Number 14.1 to Form 10-K

Executive Management for the year ended September 30 2004

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant Filed Herewith

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Filed Herewith

Accounting Firm

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer for Filed Herewith

Joseph Bartolacci

31 .2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer for Filed Herewith

Steven Nicola

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section Filed Herewith

1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 of Joseph

Bartolacci

32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section Filed Herewith

350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 of Steven

Nicola

Copies of any Exhibits will be furnished to shareholders upon written request Requests should be directed to Mr Steven

Nicola Chief Financial Officer Secretary and Treasurer of the Registrant
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Matthews International Corporation Subsidiaries January 2012

RECTORS

Morgan OBrien

President and

Chief Executive Officer

Peoples Natural Gas

Company LLC

Joseph Bartolacci

President and

Chief Executive Officer

Alvaro Garcia-Tunon

Executive Vice President

Chief Financial Officer

and Secretary

Wabtec Corporation
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Retired Senior

Vice President
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Gregory Babe

President and

Chief Executive Officer
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Robert Neubert

Retired Partner

Ernst Young LLP
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Retired President
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Eaton Corporation

OFFICERS EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Joseph Bartolacci

President and Chief Executive Officer

Brian Dunn

Group President Brand Solutions

Paul Rahill

President Cremation Division

David Beck

Vice President and Controller

Jennifer Ciccone

Vice President Human Resources

Steven Gackenbach

Group President Memorialization

Steven Nicola

Chief Financial Officet Secretary

and Treasurer

Brian Walters

Vice President and General Counsel

John Turner

Chairman of the Board

Retired Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

Copperweld Corporation

Katherine Dietze

Retired Global Chief

Operating Officer

Investment Banking Division

Credit Suisse First Boston
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